

## STATE OF MINNESOTA

## EIGHTY-FIFTH SESSION — 2007

---

 FIFTY-SEVENTH DAY

SAINT PAUL, MINNESOTA, FRIDAY, APRIL 27, 2007

The House of Representatives convened at 9:00 a.m. and was called to order by Margaret Anderson Kelliher, Speaker of the House.

Prayer was offered by the Reverend Paul Rogers, House Chaplain.

The members of the House gave the pledge of allegiance to the flag of the United States of America.

The roll was called and the following members were present:

Anderson, B.	Dill	Hilstrom	Liebling	Olson	Slawik
Anderson, S.	Dittrich	Hilty	Lieder	Otremba	Slocum
Anzenc	Dominguez	Holberg	Lillie	Ozment	Smith
Atkins	Doty	Hoppe	Loeffler	Paulsen	Solberg
Beard	Eastlund	Hornstein	Madore	Paymar	Sviggum
Benson	Eken	Hortman	Magnus	Pelowski	Swails
Berns	Emmer	Hosch	Mahoney	Peppin	Thao
Bigham	Erhardt	Howes	Mariani	Peterson, A.	Thissen
Bly	Erickson	Huntley	Marquart	Peterson, N.	Tillberry
Brod	Faust	Jaros	Masin	Peterson, S.	Tingelstad
Brown	Finstad	Johnson	McFarlane	Poppe	Tschumper
Brynaert	Fritz	Juhnke	McNamara	Rukavina	Urdahl
Buesgens	Gardner	Kahn	Moe	Ruth	Wagenius
Bunn	Garofalo	Kalin	Morgan	Ruud	Walker
Carlson	Greiling	Knuth	Morrow	Sailer	Ward
Clark	Gunther	Koenen	Mullery	Scalze	Wardlow
Cornish	Hackbarth	Kohls	Murphy, E.	Seifert	Welti
Davnie	Hamilton	Kranz	Murphy, M.	Sertich	Westrom
Dean	Hansen	Laine	Nelson	Severson	Winkler
DeLaForest	Hausman	Lanning	Nornes	Shimanski	Wollschlager
Demmer	Haws	Lenczewski	Norton	Simon	Zellers
Dettmer	Heidgerken	Lesch	Olin	Simpson	Spk. Kelliher

A quorum was present.

Gottwalt was excused.

Abeler was excused until 12:15 p.m.

The Chief Clerk proceeded to read the Journal of the preceding day. Welti moved that further reading of the Journal be suspended and that the Journal be approved as corrected by the Chief Clerk. The motion prevailed.

## REPORTS OF CHIEF CLERK

S. F. No. 475 and H. F. No. 501, which had been referred to the Chief Clerk for comparison, were examined and found to be identical with certain exceptions.

## SUSPENSION OF RULES

Thissen moved that the rules be so far suspended that S. F. No. 475 be substituted for H. F. No. 501 and that the House File be indefinitely postponed. The motion prevailed.

S. F. No. 1557 and H. F. No. 1339, which had been referred to the Chief Clerk for comparison, were examined and found to be identical.

Poppe moved that S. F. No. 1557 be substituted for H. F. No. 1339 and that the House File be indefinitely postponed. The motion prevailed.

S. F. No. 1857 and H. F. No. 2097, which had been referred to the Chief Clerk for comparison, were examined and found to be identical with certain exceptions.

## SUSPENSION OF RULES

Gardner moved that the rules be so far suspended that S. F. No. 1857 be substituted for H. F. No. 2097 and that the House File be indefinitely postponed. The motion prevailed.

## REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES AND DIVISIONS

Carlson from the Committee on Finance to which was referred:

H. F. No. 1283, A bill for an act relating to employment; requiring independent contractor exemption certificates; providing penalties; authorizing notice to the commissioners of revenue and employment and economic development; requiring the commissioner of revenue to review certifications of independent contractor status; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 181; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2006, sections 176.042; 268.035, subdivision 9.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. **[181.723] INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS.**

Subdivision 1. **Definitions.** The definitions in this subdivision apply to this section.

(a) "Person" means any individual, limited liability corporation, corporation, partnership, incorporated or unincorporated association, sole proprietorship, joint stock company, or any other legal or commercial entity.

(b) "Department" means the Department of Labor and Industry.

(c) "Commissioner" means the commissioner of labor and industry or a duly designated representative of the commissioner who is either an employee of the Department of Labor and Industry or person working under contract with the Department of Labor and Industry.

(d) "Individual" means a human being.

(e) "Day" means calendar day unless otherwise provided.

(f) "Knowingly" means knew or could have known with the exercise of reasonable diligence.

(g) "Document" or "documents" includes papers; books; records; memoranda; data; contracts; drawings; graphs; charts; photographs; digital, video, and audio recordings; records; accounts; files; statements; letters; e-mails; invoices; bills; notes; and calendars maintained in any form or manner.

Subd. 2. **Limited application.** This section only applies to individuals performing public or private sector commercial or residential building construction or improvement services.

Subd. 3. **Employee-employer relationship.** Except as provided in subdivision 4, for purposes of chapters 176, 177, 181A, 182, and 268, as of January 1, 2009, an individual who performs services for a person that are in the course of the person's trade, business, profession, or occupation is an employee of that person and that person is an employer of the individual.

Subd. 4. **Independent contractor.** An individual is an independent contractor and not an employee of the person for whom the individual is performing services in the course of the person's trade, business, profession, or occupation only if (1) the individual holds a current independent contractor exemption certificate issued by the commissioner; and (2) the individual is performing services for the person under the independent contractor exemption certificate as provided in subdivision 6. The requirements in clauses (1) and (2) must be met in order to qualify as an independent contractor and not as an employee of the person for whom the individual is performing services in the course of the person's trade, business, profession, or occupation.

Subd. 5. **Application.** To obtain an independent contractor exemption certificate, the individual must submit, in the manner prescribed by the commissioner, a complete application and the certificate fee required under subdivision 14.

(a) A complete application must include all of the following information:

(1) the individual's full name;

(2) the individual's residence address and telephone number;

(3) the individual's business name, address, and telephone number;

(4) the services for which the individual is seeking an independent contractor exemption certificate;

(5) the individual's Social Security number;

(6) the individual's or the individual's business federal employer identification number, if a number has been issued to the individual or the individual's business;

(7) any information or documentation that the commissioner requires by rule that will assist the department in determining whether to grant or deny the individual's application; and

(8) the individual's sworn statement that the individual meets all of the following conditions:

(i) maintains a separate business with the individual's own office, equipment, materials, and other facilities;

(ii) holds or has applied for a federal employer identification number or has filed business or self-employment income tax returns with the federal Internal Revenue Service if the person has performed services in the previous year for which the individual is seeking the independent contractor exemption certificate;

(iii) operates under contracts to perform specific services for specific amounts of money and under which the individual controls the means of performing the services;

(iv) incurs the main expenses related to the service that the individual performs under contract;

(v) is responsible for the satisfactory completion of services that the individual contracts to perform and is liable for a failure to complete the service;

(vi) receives compensation for service performed under a contract on a commission or per-job or competitive bid basis and not on any other basis;

(vii) may realize a profit or suffer a loss under contracts to perform service;

(viii) has continuing or recurring business liabilities or obligations; and

(ix) the success or failure of the individual's business depends on the relationship of business receipts to expenditures.

(b) Individuals who are applying for or renewing a residential building contractor or residential remodeler license under sections 326.83 to 326.992 and any rules promulgated pursuant thereto may simultaneously apply for or renew an independent contractor exemption certificate. The commissioner shall create an application form that allows for the simultaneous application for both a residential building contractor or residential remodeler license and an independent contractor exemption certificate. If individuals simultaneously apply for or renew a residential building contractor or residential remodeler license and an independent contractor exemption certificate using the form created by the commissioner, individuals shall only be required to provide, in addition to the information required by section 326.89 and rules promulgated pursuant thereto, the sworn statement required by paragraph (a), clause (8), and any additional information required by this subdivision that is not also required by section 326.89 and any rules promulgated thereto. When individuals submit a simultaneous application on the form created by the commissioner for both a residential building contractor or residential remodeler license and an independent contractor exemption certificate the application fee shall be \$150. An independent contractor exemption certificate that is in effect before March 1, 2009, shall remain in effect until March 1, 2011, unless revoked by the commissioner or cancelled by the individual.

(c) Within 30 days of receiving a complete application and the certificate fee, the commissioner must either grant or deny the application. The commissioner may deny an application for an independent contractor exemption certificate if the individual has not submitted a complete application and certificate fee or if the individual does not meet all of the conditions for holding the independent contractor exemption certificate. The commissioner may revoke an independent contractor exemption certificate if the commissioner determines that the individual no longer meets all of the conditions for holding the independent contractor exemption certificate, commits any of the actions set out in subdivision 7, or fails to cooperate with a department investigation into the continued validity of the individual's certificate. Once issued, an independent contractor exemption certificate remains in effect for two years unless:

(1) revoked by the commissioner; or

(2) canceled by the individual.

(d) If the department denies an individual's original or renewal application for an independent contractor exemption certificate or revokes an independent contractor exemption certificate, the commissioner shall issue to the individual an order denying or revoking the certificate. The commissioner may issue an administrative penalty order to an individual or person who commits any of the actions set out in subdivision 7.

(e) An individual or person to whom the commissioner issues an order under paragraph (d) shall have 30 days after service of the order to request a hearing. The request for hearing must be in writing and must be served on or faxed to the commissioner at the address or facsimile number specified in the order by the 30th day after service of the order. If the individual does not request a hearing or if the individual's request for a hearing is not served on or faxed to the commissioner by the 30th day after service of the order, the order shall become a final order of the commissioner and will not be subject to review by any court or agency. The date on which a request for hearing is served by mail shall be the postmark date on the envelope in which the request for hearing is mailed. If the individual serves or faxes a timely request for hearing, the hearing shall be a contested case hearing and shall be held in accordance with chapter 14.

Subd. 6. **Performing services under exemption certificate.** An individual is performing services for a person under an independent contractor exemption certificate if:

(a) the individual is performing services listed on the individual's independent contractor exemption certificate;

(b) at the time the individual is performing services listed on the individual's independent contractor exemption certificate, the individual meets all of the following conditions:

(1) maintains a separate business with the individual's own office, equipment, materials, and other facilities;

(2) holds or has applied for a federal employer identification number or has filed business or self-employment income tax returns with the federal Internal Revenue Service if the individual performed services in the previous year for which the individual has the independent contractor exemption certificate;

(3) is operating under contract to perform the specific services for the person for specific amounts of money and under which the individual controls the means of performing the services;

(4) is incurring the main expenses related to the services that the individual is performing for the person under the contract;

(5) is responsible for the satisfactory completion of the services that the individual has contracted to perform for the person and is liable for a failure to complete the services;

(6) receives compensation from the person for the services performed under the contract on a commission or per-job or competitive bid basis and not on any other basis;

(7) may realize a profit or suffers a loss under the contract to perform services for the person;

(8) has continuing or recurring business liabilities or obligations; and

(9) the success or failure of the individual's business depends on the relationship of business receipts to expenditures.

**Subd. 7. Prohibited activities.** (a) An individual shall not:

(1) perform work as an independent contractor who meets the qualifications under subdivision 6, without first obtaining from the department an independent contractor exemption certificate;

(2) perform work as an independent contractor when the department has denied or revoked the individual's independent contractor exemption certificate;

(3) transfer to another individual or allow another individual to use the individual's independent contractor exemption certificate;

(4) alter or falsify an independent contractor exemption certificate;

(5) misrepresent the individual's status as an independent contractor; or

(6) make a false material statement, representation, or certification; omit material information; or alter, conceal, or fail to file a document required by this section or any rule promulgated by the commissioner under rulemaking authority set out in this section.

**(b) A person shall not:**

(1) require an individual through coercion, misrepresentation, or fraudulent means to adopt independent contractor status;

(2) knowingly misrepresent that an individual who has not been issued an independent contractor exemption certificate or is not performing services for the person under an independent contractor exemption certificate is an independent contractor; or

(3) make a false material statement, representation, or certification; omit material information; or alter, conceal, or fail to file a document required by this section or any rule promulgated by the commissioner under rulemaking authority set out in this section.

**(c) A person for whom an individual is performing services must obtain a copy of the individual's independent contractor exemption certificate before services may commence. A copy of the independent contractor exemption certificate must be retained for five years from the date of receipt by the person for whom an individual is performing services.**

**Subd. 8. Remedies.** An individual or person who violates any provision of subdivision 7 is subject to a penalty to be assessed by the department of up to \$5,000 for each violation. The department shall deposit penalties in the assigned risk safety account.

**Subd. 9. Commissioner's powers.** (a) In order to carry out the purposes of this section, the commissioner may:

(1) administer oaths and affirmations, certify official acts, interview, question, take oral or written statements, and take depositions;

(2) request, examine, take possession of, photograph, record, and copy any documents, equipment, or materials;

(3) at a time and place indicated by the commissioner, request persons to appear before the commissioner to give testimony and produce documents, equipment, or materials;

(4) issue subpoenas to compel persons to appear before the commissioner to give testimony and produce documents, equipment, or materials; and

(5) subject to paragraph (c), with or without notice, enter without delay upon any property, public or private, for the purpose of taking any action authorized under this subdivision or the applicable law, including obtaining information or conducting inspections or investigations.

(b) Persons requested by the commissioner to give testimony or produce documents, equipment, or materials shall respond within the time and in the manner specified by the commissioner. If no time to respond is specified in the request, then a response shall be submitted within 30 days of the commissioner's service of the request.

(c) Upon the refusal or anticipated refusal of a property owner, lessee, property owner's representative, or lessee's representative to permit the commissioner's entry onto property as provided in paragraph (a), the commissioner may apply for an administrative inspection order in the Ramsey County District Court or, at the commissioner's discretion, in the district court in the county in which the property is located. The commissioner may anticipate that a property owner or lessee will refuse entry if the property owner, lessee, property owner's representative, or lessee's representative has refused to permit entry on a prior occasion or has informed the commissioner that entry will be refused. Upon showing of administrative probable cause by the commissioner, the district court shall issue an administrative inspection order that compels the property owner or lessee to permit the commissioner to enter the property for the purposes specified in paragraph (a).

(d) Upon the application of the commissioner, a district court shall treat the failure of any person to obey a subpoena lawfully issued by the commissioner under this subdivision as a contempt of court.

Subd. 10. **Notice requirements.** Unless otherwise specified, service of a document on a person under this section may be by mail, by personal service, or in accordance with any consent to service filed with the commissioner. Service by mail shall be accomplished in the manner provided in Minnesota Rules, part 1400.5550, subpart 2. Personal service shall be accomplished in the manner provided in Minnesota Rules, part 1400.5550, subpart 3.

Subd. 11. **Facsimile; timely service.** When this section permits a request for hearing to be served by facsimile on the commissioner, the facsimile shall not exceed 15 pages in length. The request shall be considered timely served if the facsimile is received by the commissioner, at the facsimile number identified by the commissioner in the order, no later than 4:30 p.m. central time on the last day permitted for faxing the request. Where the quality or authenticity of the faxed request is at issue, the commissioner may require the original request to be filed. Where the commissioner has not identified quality or authenticity of the faxed request as an issue and the request has been faxed in accordance with this subdivision, the person faxing the request does not need to file the original request with the commissioner.

Subd. 12. **Time period computation.** In computing any period of time prescribed or allowed by this section, the day of the act, event, or default from which the designated period of time begins to run shall not be included. The last day of the period so computed shall be included, unless it is a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, in which event the period runs until the next day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday.

Subd. 13. **Rulemaking.** The commissioner may, in consultation with the commissioner of revenue and the commissioner of employment and economic development, adopt, amend, suspend, and repeal rules under the rulemaking provisions of chapter 14 that relate to the commissioner's responsibilities under this section. This subdivision is effective the day following final enactment.

Subd. 14. **Fee.** The certificate fee for the original application and for the renewal of an independent contractor exemption certificate shall be \$150. Fees collected under this subdivision are deposited in the general fund.

Subd. 15. **Notice to commissioner; review by commissioner of revenue.** When the commissioner has reason to believe that an individual who holds a certificate has failed to maintain all the conditions required by subdivision 6 or is not performing services for a person under the independent contractor exemption certificate, the commissioner must notify the commissioner of revenue and the commissioner of employment and economic development. Upon receipt of notification from the commissioner that an individual who holds a certificate has failed to maintain all the conditions required by subdivision 6 or is not performing services for a person under the independent contractor exemption certificate, the commissioner of revenue must review the information returns required under section 6041A of the Internal Revenue Code. The commissioner of revenue shall also review the submitted certification that is applicable to returns audited or investigated under section 289A.35.

Subd. 16. **Data classified.** Data in applications for an independent contractor exemption certificate and any required documentation submitted to the commissioner are private data on individuals as defined in section 13.02. Data in exemption certificates issued by the commissioner are public data. Data that document a revocation or cancellation of an exemption certificate are public data. Upon request of the Department of Revenue or Department of Employment and Economic Development, the commissioner may release to the requesting department data classified as private under this subdivision or investigative data that are not public under section 13.39 that relate to the issuance or denial of applications or revocations of certificates.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective July 1, 2008.

Sec. 2. **APPROPRIATION.**

\$800,000 in fiscal year 2008 and \$1,200,000 in fiscal year 2009 are appropriated from the general fund to the commissioner of labor and industry for the purposes of this act. The general fund base for this appropriation is \$1,425,000 each year in the 2010-2011 biennium. If an appropriation for this purpose is enacted more than once, the appropriation is effective only once.

Sec. 3. **REPEALER.**

Minnesota Statutes 2006, sections 176.042; and 268.035, subdivision 9, are repealed.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective January 1, 2009."

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Ways and Means.

The report was adopted.

Carlson from the Committee on Finance to which was referred:

H. F. No. 2253, A bill for an act relating to energy; amending provisions regarding community-based energy development projects; regulating utility ownership and cost recovery for renewable energy projects; requiring Public Utilities Commission to establish policy regarding curtailment payments; regulating green pricing programs; requiring studies of potential for dispersed generation projects; extending expiration of reliability administrator position and transferring the position from Public Utilities Commission to Department of Commerce; limiting the length of wind easements if a project is not constructed; requiring reliability administrator to study need for and authority of state electric transmission authority and of enhancing ease of interconnecting dispersed generation projects to the grid; specifying aggregation procedures for purposes of permitting wind projects; allowing counties



to issue permits for large wind energy conversion systems; removing sunset for renewable energy option program for utility customers; amending Minnesota Statutes 2006, sections 216B.1612; 216B.1645, by adding subdivisions; 216B.169; 216B.2426; 216C.052; 500.30, subdivision 2; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 216B; 216F; repealing Laws 2007, chapter 3, section 3.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. **CITATION.**

Sections 1 to 14 may be known as the "Community-Based Energy Development Act of 2007."

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 216B.1612, is amended to read:

**216B.1612 COMMUNITY-BASED ENERGY DEVELOPMENT; TARIFF.**

Subdivision 1. **Tariff establishment.** A tariff shall be established to optimize local, regional, and state benefits from ~~wind~~ renewable energy development and to facilitate widespread development of community-based ~~wind~~ renewable energy projects throughout Minnesota.

Subd. 2. **Definitions.** (a) The terms used in this section have the meanings given them in this subdivision.

(b) "C-BED tariff" or "tariff" means a community-based energy development tariff.

(c) "Qualifying owner" means:

(1) a Minnesota resident;

(2) a limited liability company that is organized under ~~the laws of this state~~ chapter 322B and that is made up of members who are Minnesota residents;

(3) a Minnesota nonprofit organization organized under chapter 317A;

(4) a Minnesota cooperative association organized under chapter 308A or 308B, ~~other than~~ including a rural electric cooperative association or a generation and transmission cooperative on behalf of and at the request of a member distribution utility;

(5) a Minnesota political subdivision or local government ~~other than~~ including, but not limited to, a municipal electric utility or a municipal power agency on behalf of and at the request of a member distribution utility, ~~including, but not limited to,~~ a county, statutory or home rule charter city, town, school district, or public or private higher education institution or any other local or regional governmental organization such as a board, commission, or association; or

(6) a tribal council.

(d) "Net present value rate" means a rate equal to the net present value of the nominal payments to a project divided by the total expected energy production of the project over the life of its power purchase agreement.

(e) "Standard reliability criteria" means:

(1) can be safely integrated into and operated within the utility's grid without causing any adverse or unsafe consequences; and

(2) is consistent with the utility's resource needs as identified in its most recent resource plan submitted under section 216B.2422.

(f) "Renewable" refers to a technology listed in section 216B.1691, subdivision 1, paragraph (a).

(g) "Community-based energy development project" or "C-BED project" means a new ~~wind~~ renewable energy project that:

(1) has no single qualifying owner owning more than 15 percent of a C-BED project that consists of more than two turbines; or

(2) for C-BED projects of one or two turbines, is owned entirely by one or more qualifying owners, with at least 51 percent of the total financial benefits over the life of the project flowing to qualifying owners; and

(1) provides that at least 51 percent of the total payments made as a direct result of a power purchase agreement or similar agreement with a utility accrue to:

(i) qualifying owners, in the form of net cash payments under the power purchase agreement that amount to no less than 35 percent made over the term of the power purchase agreement;

(ii) owners of land upon which a project is sited, in the form of easement or lease payments;

(iii) local units of government, in the form of taxes paid under section 272.029; and

(iv) lenders chartered under section 46.044, in the form of interest paid on C-BED project debt financed by a lender;

(2) allows, if the project is a wind energy project consisting of more than two turbines, no single qualifying owner to own more than 15 percent of the project;

(3) allows, if the project is a wind energy project, a public entity listed in paragraph (c), clause (5), except for a municipal utility, to own more than 15 percent of the project; and

~~(3)~~ (4) has a resolution of support adopted by the county board of each county in which the project is to be located, or in the case of a project located within the boundaries of a reservation, the tribal council for that reservation.

Subd. 3. **Tariff rate.** (a) The tariff described in subdivision 4 must have a rate schedule that allows for a ~~rate up to a 2.7 cents per kilowatt-hour~~ net present value rate over the 20-year life of the power purchase agreement. The tariff must provide for a rate that is higher in the first ten years of the power purchase agreement than in the last ten years. The discount rate required to calculate the net present value must be the utility's normal discount rate used for its other business purposes.

(b) The commission shall consider mechanisms to encourage the aggregation of C-BED projects.

(c) The commission shall require that qualifying and nonqualifying owners provide sufficient security to secure performance under the power purchase agreement, and shall prohibit the transfer of the C-BED project to a nonqualifying owner during the initial 20 years of the contract.

Subd. 4. **Utilities to offer tariff.** By December 1, ~~2005~~ 2007, each public utility providing electric service at retail shall file for commission approval a community-based energy development tariff consistent with subdivision 3. Within 90 days of the first commission approval order under this subdivision, each municipal power agency and generation and transmission cooperative electric association shall adopt a community-based energy development tariff as consistent as possible with subdivision 3.

Subd. 5. **Priority for C-BED projects.** (a) A utility subject to section 216B.1691 that needs to construct new generation, or purchase the output from new generation, as part of its plan to satisfy its good faith objective and standard under that section ~~should~~ must take reasonable steps to determine if one or more C-BED projects are available that meet the utility's cost and reliability requirements, applying standard reliability criteria, to fulfill some or all of the identified need at minimal impact to customer rates.

Nothing in this section shall be construed to obligate a utility to enter into a power purchase agreement under a C-BED tariff developed under this section. A utility whose renewable energy plan has been approved by the commission under section 216B.1645, subdivision 2a, must negotiate in good faith with developers of C-BED projects that meet the specifications of this paragraph and whose aggregated capacity is equal to the capacity of C-BED projects identified in the plan from which the utility intends to purchase energy.

(b) Each utility shall include in its resource plan submitted under section 216B.2422 a description of its efforts to purchase energy from C-BED projects, including a list of the projects under contract and the amount of C-BED energy purchased.

(c) The commission shall consider the efforts and activities of a utility to purchase energy from C-BED projects when evaluating its good faith effort towards meeting the renewable energy objective under section 216B.1691.

(d) A municipal power agency or generation and transmission cooperative must, when issuing a request for proposals for C-BED projects to satisfy its standard obligation under section 216B.1691, provide notice to its member distribution utilities that they may propose, in partnership with other qualifying owners, a C-BED project for the consideration of the municipal power agency or generation and transmission cooperative.

Subd. 6. **Property owner participation.** To the extent feasible, a developer of a C-BED project must provide, in writing, an opportunity to invest in the C-BED project to each property owner on whose property a high-voltage transmission line is constructed that will transmit the energy generated by the C-BED project to market. This subdivision applies if the property is located and the owner resides in the county where the C-BED project is located.

Subd. 7. **Other C-BED tariff issues.** (a) A community-based project developer and a utility shall negotiate the rate and power purchase agreement terms consistent with the tariff established under subdivision 4.

(b) At the discretion of the developer, a community-based project developer and a utility may negotiate a power purchase agreement with terms different from the tariff established under subdivision 4.

(c) A qualifying owner, or any combination of qualifying owners, may develop a joint venture project with a nonqualifying ~~wind~~ renewable energy project developer. However, the terms of the C-BED tariff may only apply to the portion of the energy production of the total project that is directly proportional to the equity share of the project owned by the qualifying owners.

(d) A project that is operating under a power purchase agreement under a C-BED tariff is not eligible for net energy billing under section 216B.164, subdivision 3, or for production incentives under section 216C.41.

(e) A public utility must receive commission approval of a power purchase agreement for a C-BED tarified project. The commission shall provide the utility's ratepayers an opportunity to address the reasonableness of the proposed power purchase agreement. Unless a party objects to a contract within 30 days of submission of the contract to the commission the contract is deemed approved.

Subd. 8. **Community energy partnerships.** A utility providing electric service to retail or wholesale customers in Minnesota and an independent power producer may participate, and are encouraged to participate, in a community-based energy project, as owner, equity partner, or provider of technical or financial assistance, subject to the limits specified in this section.

Subd. 9. **C-BED advisory determination.** A developer of a proposed project may request the commissioner of commerce to issue an advisory determination as to whether the proposed project qualifies as a C-BED project under this section. The request must be made on a form and under a procedure approved by the commissioner. A positive advisory determination of the commissioner under this subdivision establishes a rebuttable presumption that the project qualifies as a C-BED project.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 216B.1645, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 2a. **Utility ownership of renewable resources.** (a) A utility may construct, own, and operate generation facilities used to satisfy the requirements of section 216B.1691, notwithstanding any competitive resource acquisition process established under section 216B.2422, subdivision 5.

(b) In lieu of any competitive resource acquisition process, a utility that owns a nuclear generation facility and intends to construct, own, or operate facilities under this section must file with the commission on or before March 1, 2008, a renewable energy plan setting forth the manner in which the utility proposes to meet the requirements of section 216B.1691, including a proposed schedule for purchasing renewable energy from C-BED and non-C-BED projects, a proposed schedule of acquisition and construction of generation facilities and their expected in-service dates, and proposed transmission resources associated with the facilities, including a proposed construction schedule and expected in-service date for any transmission sources that need to be constructed to deliver the electricity generated by the facilities. The plan must also contain alternative means of providing the energy generated by the facilities described in the plan, and must compare the costs of delivering energy from these alternative means and from the facilities identified in the plan. The utility must update the plan as necessary in its filing under section 216B.2422.

(c) The commission must approve the plan unless it determines, after public hearing and comment, that the plan:

(1) imposes excessive costs on ratepayers;

(2) does not reasonably allocate resources among utility-owned generation facilities, energy purchased from C-BED and non-C-BED projects, and generation facilities selected in a competitive selection process under section 216B.2422, subdivision 5; or

(3) does not maximize benefits to Minnesota citizens, as required by section 216B.1691, subdivision 9.

Nothing in this section prohibits a utility from seeking and securing approval from the commission to implement projects prior to submission of the plan required under this section.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 216B.1645, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 2b. **Cost recovery for owned renewable facilities.** (a) A utility may petition the commission to approve a rate schedule that provides for the automatic adjustment of charges to recover prudently incurred investments, expenses, or costs associated with facilities constructed, owned, or operated by a utility to satisfy the requirements of section 216B.1691, provided those facilities were previously approved by the commission under section 216B.2422 or 216B.243. The commission may approve, or approve as modified, a rate schedule that:

(1) allows a utility to recover directly from customers on a timely basis the costs of qualifying renewable energy projects, including:

(i) return on investment;

(ii) depreciation;

(iii) ongoing operation and maintenance costs;

(iv) taxes; and

(v) costs of transmission and other ancillary expenses directly allocable to transmitting electricity generated from a project meeting the specifications of this paragraph;

(2) provides a current return on construction work in progress, provided that recovery of these costs from Minnesota ratepayers is not sought through any other mechanism;

(3) allows recovery of other expenses incurred that are directly related to a renewable energy project, provided that the utility demonstrates to the commission's satisfaction that the expenses improve project economics, ensure project implementation, or facilitate coordination with the development of transmission necessary to transport energy produced by the project to market;

(4) allocates recoverable costs appropriately between wholesale and retail customers;

(5) terminates recovery when costs have been fully recovered or have otherwise been reflected in a utility's rates.

(b) A petition filed under this subdivision must include:

(1) a description of the facilities for which costs are to be recovered;

(2) an implementation schedule for the facilities;

(3) the utility's costs for the facilities;

(4) a description of the utility's efforts to ensure that costs of the facilities are reasonable and were prudently incurred; and

(5) a description of the benefits of the project in promoting the development of renewable energy in a manner consistent with this chapter.

Sec. 5. **[216B.1681] CURTAILMENT PAYMENTS.**

The commission shall, by September 1, 2007, initiate a review of curtailment payments for wind energy projects to assess whether utilities are unduly discriminating among project ownership structures in regard to the contractual availability of curtailment payments.

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 216B.169, is amended to read:

**216B.169 RENEWABLE AND HIGH-EFFICIENCY ENERGY RATE OPTIONS COMMUNITY-BASED ENERGY DEVELOPMENT GREEN PRICING OPTION.**

Subdivision 1. **Definitions.** For the purposes of this section, the following terms have the meanings given them.

(a) "Utility" means a public utility, municipal utility, or cooperative electric association providing electric service at retail to Minnesota consumers.

(b) ~~"Renewable energy" has the meaning given in section 216B.2422, subdivision 1, paragraph (c)~~ "Eligible energy technology" has the meaning given in section 216B.1691, subdivision 1.

(c) ~~"High-efficiency, low-emissions, distributed generation" means a distributed generation facility of no more than ten megawatts of interconnected capacity that is certified by the commissioner under subdivision 3 as a high-efficiency, low-emissions facility~~ "Community-based energy development project" or "C-BED" has the meaning given in section 216B.1612, subdivision 2, paragraph (g).

Subd. 2. ~~Renewable and high-efficiency energy rate options~~ **C-BED green pricing programs.** (a) Each utility shall offer its customers, and shall advertise the offer at least ~~annually~~ quarterly, one or more options that allow a customer to determine that a certain amount of the electricity generated or purchased on behalf of the customer is ~~renewable energy or energy generated by high efficiency, low-emissions, distributed generation such as fuel cells and microturbines fueled by a renewable fuel~~ a community-based energy development project or is provided through the purchase of renewable energy credits from a C-BED project.

(b) Each public utility shall file an implementation plan within 90 days of July 1, ~~2004~~ 2007, to implement paragraph (a).

(c) Rates charged to customers must be calculated using the utility's cost of acquiring the energy for the customer and must:

(1) reflect the difference between the cost of generating or purchasing the ~~renewable~~ C-BED energy or credits and the cost of generating or purchasing the same amount of ~~nonrenewable~~ energy or credits from non-C-BED sources; and

(2) be distributed on a per kilowatt-hour basis among all customers who choose to participate in the program.

(d) Implementation of these rate options may reflect a reasonable amount of lead time necessary to arrange acquisition of the energy. The utility ~~may~~ must acquire the energy demanded by customers, in whole or in part, through procuring or generating ~~the renewable C-BED energy directly, or through the purchase of credits from a provider that has received certification of eligible power supply pursuant to subdivision 3 issued under the program established by the commission under section 216B.1691, subdivision 4, if available.~~ If a utility is not able to arrange an adequate supply of renewable or high-efficiency C-BED energy or credits to meet its customers' demand under this section, the utility must file a report with the commission detailing its efforts and reasons for its failure.

Subd. 3. **Certification and tradeable credits.** ~~(a) The commissioner shall certify a power supply or supplies as eligible to satisfy customer requirements under this section upon finding:~~

~~(1) the power supply is renewable energy or energy generated by high efficiency, low emissions, distributed generation meets the requirements of section 216B.1612; and~~

~~(2) the sales arrangements of energy from the supplies are such that the power supply is only sold once to retail consumers.~~

~~(b) To facilitate compliance with this section, the commission may, by order, establish a program for tradeable credits for eligible power supplies.~~

Subd. 4. **C-BED logo.** (a) The commissioner of commerce shall design or contract for the design of a logo that qualifying entities may affix to their products and to advertising for their products that contains the words "100% Minnesota Renewable Energy." The logo may also contain a standardized pictorial representation or design.

(b) The commissioner of commerce must certify in writing that an entity is authorized to use the logo if the commissioner determines that all the electricity consumed by an applicant is purchased directly, or by purchasing credits from a C-BED project. The commissioner of commerce must develop forms and procedures to govern the application and certification processes and the use of the logo by an entity that receives certification. No person may use the logo without certification from the commissioner.

(c) For the purposes of this subdivision, "qualifying entity" means a person or entity that has received certification from the commissioner of commerce granting the entity authority to use the C-BED logo in the manner prescribed by the commissioner.

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 216C.052, is amended to read:

#### **216C.052 RELIABILITY ADMINISTRATOR.**

Subdivision 1. **Responsibilities.** (a) There is established the position of reliability administrator in the ~~Public Utilities Commission~~ Department of Commerce. The administrator shall act as a source of independent expertise and a technical advisor to the commissioner, the commission, and the public on issues related to the reliability of the electric system. In conducting its work, the administrator shall provide assistance to the ~~commission commissioner~~ commissioner in administering and implementing the ~~commission's department's~~ department's duties under sections 216B.1612, 216B.1691, 216B.2422, 216B.2425, and 216B.243; chapters 216E, 216F, and 216G; and rules associated with those provisions-~~Subject to resource constraints, the reliability administrator may also and shall also:~~

(1) model and monitor the use and operation of the energy infrastructure in the state, including generation facilities, transmission lines, natural gas pipelines, and other energy infrastructure;

(2) develop and present to the commission and parties technical analyses of proposed infrastructure projects, and provide technical advice to the commission; and

(3) present independent, factual, expert, and technical information on infrastructure proposals and reliability issues at public meetings hosted by the task force, the Environmental Quality Board, the department, or the commission.

(b) Upon request and subject to resource constraints, the administrator shall provide technical assistance regarding matters unrelated to applications for infrastructure improvements to the task force, the department, or the commission.

(c) The administrator may not advocate for any particular outcome in a commission proceeding, but may give technical advice to the commission as to the impact on the reliability of the energy system of a particular project or projects.

Subd. 2. **Administrative issues.** (a) The ~~commission commissioner~~ may select the administrator ~~who shall serve for a four-year term~~. The administrator must demonstrate technical training, expertise, or experience in energy reliability issues, and may not have been a party or a participant in a commission energy proceeding for at least one year prior to selection by the commission commissioner. The ~~commission commissioner~~ shall oversee and direct the work of the administrator, annually review the expenses of the administrator, and annually approve the budget of the administrator. ~~Pursuant to commission approval,~~ The administrator may hire staff and may contract for technical expertise in performing duties when existing state resources are required for other state responsibilities or when special expertise is required. The salary of the administrator is governed by section 15A.0815, subdivision 2.

(b) Costs relating to a specific proceeding, analysis, or project are not general administrative costs. For purposes of this section, "energy utility" means public utilities, generation and transmission cooperative electric associations, and municipal power agencies providing natural gas or electric service in the state.

(c) The ~~commission~~ Department of Commerce shall pay:

(1) the general administrative costs of the administrator, not to exceed \$1,000,000 in a fiscal year, and shall assess energy utilities for those administrative costs. These costs must be consistent with the budget approved by the ~~commission commissioner~~ under paragraph (a). The ~~commission department~~ shall apportion the costs among all energy utilities in proportion to their respective gross operating revenues from sales of gas or electric service within the state during the last calendar year, and shall then render a bill to each utility on a regular basis; and

(2) costs relating to a specific proceeding analysis or project and shall render a bill to the specific energy utility or utilities participating in the proceeding, analysis, or project directly, either at the conclusion of a particular proceeding, analysis, or project, or from time to time during the course of the proceeding, analysis, or project.

(d) For purposes of administrative efficiency, the ~~commission department~~ shall assess energy utilities and issue bills in accordance with the billing and assessment procedures provided in section 216B.62, to the extent that these procedures do not conflict with this subdivision. The amount of the bills rendered by the ~~commission department~~ under paragraph (c) must be paid by the energy utility into an account in the special revenue fund in the state treasury within 30 days from the date of billing and is appropriated to the ~~commission department~~ for the purposes provided in this section. The commission shall approve or approve as modified a rate schedule providing for the automatic adjustment of charges to recover amounts paid by utilities under this section. All amounts assessed under this section are in addition to amounts appropriated to the commission and the department by other law.

Subd. 3. **Assessment and appropriation.** In addition to the amount noted in subdivision 2, the ~~commission commissioner~~ may assess utilities, using the mechanism specified in that subdivision, up to an additional \$500,000 annually through June 30, 2008. The amounts assessed under this subdivision are appropriated to the ~~commission commissioner~~, and some or all of the amounts assessed may be transferred to the commissioner of administration, for the purposes specified in section 16B.325 and Laws 2001, chapter 212, article 1, section 3, as needed to implement those sections.

Subd. 4. **Expiration.** Subdivisions 1 and 2 expire June 30, ~~2007~~ 2012. Subdivision 3 expires June 30, 2008.

#### Sec. 8. **[216F.011] SIZE DETERMINATION.**

(a) The total size of a combination of wind energy conversion systems for the purpose of determining jurisdictional siting authority under sections 216F.01 to 216F.07 must be determined according to this section. The nameplate capacity of one wind energy conversion system must be combined with the nameplate capacity of any other wind energy conversion system that is:



(1) located within five miles of the wind energy conversion system;

(2) constructed within the same 12-month period as the wind energy conversion system; and

(3) exhibits characteristics of being a single development, including but not limited to ownership structure, an umbrella sales arrangement, shared interconnection, revenue sharing arrangements, and common debt or equity financing.

(b) The commissioner shall prepare and make available the necessary forms and guidance for project developers to make a request for determination. Upon written request of a project developer, the commissioner of commerce shall provide a written determination under this section within 30 days of receipt of the request and information necessary to make a determination. In the case of a dispute, the chair of the Public Utilities Commission shall determine the total size of the system, and shall draw all reasonable inferences in favor of combining the systems.

(c) An application to a county for a permit for a wind energy conversion system is not complete without a jurisdictional determination made under this section.

Sec. 9. **[216F.08] PERMIT AUTHORITY; ASSUMPTION BY COUNTIES.**

Subdivision 1. **Definition.** For the purposes of this subdivision, the term "processing" means:

(1) the distribution to applicants of application and determination forms provided by the commission;

(2) the receipt and examination of completed application forms, and the certification, in writing, to the commission either that the LWECS for which a permit was issued by the county will comply with applicable rules and standards, or, if the facility will not comply, the respects in which a variance is required for the issuance of a permit; and

(3) rendering to applicants, upon request, assistance for the proper completion of an application.

Subd. 2. **Counties; processing applications for LWECS site permits.** (a) Any Minnesota county board may, by resolution and upon written notice to the Public Utilities Commission, assume responsibility for processing applications for permits required under this chapter for LWECS with a combined nameplate capacity of less than 25,000 kilowatts. The responsibility for permit application processing, if assumed by a county, may be delegated by the county board to an appropriate county officer or employee. Processing by a county shall be done in accordance with procedures and processes established under chapter 394.

(b) A county board that exercises its option under paragraph (a) and assumes responsibility for processing applications for permits for LWECS within its borders is responsible for issuing, denying, modifying, imposing conditions upon, or revoking permits under this section or rules adopted pursuant to it. The action of the county board with regard to a permit application is final, subject to appeal as provided in section 394.27.

(c) In adopting and enforcing rules or standards under this subdivision, the commission shall cooperate closely with counties and other governmental agencies.

(d) The commission shall work with counties and wind developers to notify and educate stakeholders with regard to rules or standards under this section at the time the rules or standards are being developed and adopted and at least every two years thereafter.

(e) The commission shall, by order, establish general permit standards governing site permits for LWECs under this section. These general permit standards must apply both to permits issued by counties and to permits issued by the commission directly for LWECs with a combined nameplate capacity of less than 25,000 kilowatts. The order must contain minimum standards necessary to ensure the protection of human health and safety and wind resources on adjacent land and must be consistent with the general provisions of wind permits issued by the commission in the five years prior to enactment of this section.

(f) The commission and the commissioner of commerce shall provide technical assistance to a county with respect to the processing of LWECs site permit applications by the county.

(g) A county may adopt by ordinance standards for LWECs that are more stringent than standards in commission rules or in the commission's permit standards. The commission, in considering a permit for LWECs in a county that has adopted more stringent standards, shall incorporate and apply those more stringent standards, unless the commission finds there is good cause not to do so.

Sec. 10. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 500.30, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Like any conveyance.** Any property owner may grant a solar or wind easement in the same manner and with the same effect as a conveyance of an interest in real property. The easements shall be created in writing and shall be filed, duly recorded, and indexed in the office of the recorder of the county in which the easement is granted. No duly recorded easement shall be unenforceable on account of lack of privity of estate or privity of contract; such easements shall run with the land or lands benefited and burdened and shall constitute a perpetual easement, except that an easement may terminate upon the conditions stated therein or pursuant to the provisions of section 500.20. A wind easement or lease of wind rights shall also terminate after five years from the date the easement is created or lease is entered into, if a wind energy project on the property to which the easement or lease applies does not begin commercial operation within the five-year period.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment, and applies to wind easements created and wind rights leases entered into on or after the effective date of this section.

Sec. 11. **STATEWIDE STUDY OF DISPERSED GENERATION POTENTIAL.**

Subdivision 1. **Definition.** "Dispersed generation" means an electric generation project with a generating capacity between ten and 40 megawatts that utilizes an eligible energy technology, as defined in Minnesota Statutes, section 216B.1691, subdivision 1, paragraph (a).

Subd. 2. **Study participants.** Each electric utility subject to Minnesota Statutes, section 216B.1691, must participate collaboratively in conducting a two-phase study of the potential for dispersed generation projects that can be developed in Minnesota.

Subd. 3. **First phase study content; report.** In the first phase of the study, participants must analyze the impacts of the addition of a total of 600 megawatts of new dispersed generation projects distributed among the following Minnesota electric transmission planning zones: the Northeast zone, the Northwest zone, the Southeast zone, the Southwest zone, and the West-Central zone. Study participants must use a generally accepted 2010 year transmission system model including all transmission facilities expected to be operating in 2010. The study must take into consideration regional projected load growth, planned changes in the bulk transmission network, and the long-range transmission conceptual plan being developed under Laws 2007, chapter 3, section 2. In determining locations for the installation of dispersed generation projects that consist of wind energy conversion systems, the study should consider, at a minimum, wind resource availability, existing and contracted wind projects, and current dispersed generation projects in the Midwest Independent System Operator interconnection queue. The study must

analyze the impacts of individual projects and all projects in aggregate on the transmission system, and identify specific modifications to the transmission system necessary to remedy any problems caused by the installation of dispersed generation projects, including cost estimates for the modifications. The study must analyze the additional dispersed generation projects connected at the lowest voltage level transmission that exists in the vicinity of the projected generation sites. A preliminary analysis to identify transmission system problems must be conducted with the projects installed at initially selected locations. The technical review committee may, after reviewing the locations selected for installation, recommend moving the installation sites to new locations to reduce undesirable transmission system impacts. The commissioner of commerce must submit a report containing the findings and recommendations of the first phase of the study to the commission no later than June 15, 2008.

Subd. 4. **Second phase study content; report.** In the second phase of the study, participants must analyze the impacts of an additional total of 600 megawatts of dispersed generation projects installed among the five transmission planning zones, or a higher total capacity amount if agreed to by both the utilities and the technical review committee. The utilities must employ an analysis method similar to that used in the first phase of the study, and must use the most recent information available, including information developed in the first phase. The second phase of the study must use a generally accepted 2013 year transmission system model including all transmission facilities that are expected to be in-service at that time. The commissioner of commerce must submit a report containing the findings and recommendations of the second phase of the study to the commission no later than September 15, 2009.

Subd. 5. **Technical review committee.** Prior to the start of the first phase of the study, the commissioner of commerce must appoint a technical review committee consisting of between ten and 15 individuals with experience and expertise in electric transmission system engineering, renewable energy generation technology, and dispersed generation project development, including representatives from the federal Department of Energy, the Midwest Independent System Operator, and stakeholder interests. The technical review committee must oversee both phases of the study, and must:

(1) make recommendations to the utilities regarding the proposed methods and assumptions to be used in the technical study;

(2) in conjunction with the appropriate utilities, hold public meetings on each phase of the study in each electricity transmission planning zone prior to the beginning of each phase of study, after the impact analysis is completed, and when a draft final report is available; and

(3) review the initial and final drafts of the study and make recommendations for improvement, including with respect to problems associated with the interconnections among utility systems that may be amenable to solution through cooperation between the utilities in each zone. During each phase of the study, the technical review committee may recommend that the installation of dispersed generation projects be moved to new locations that cause fewer undesirable transmission system impacts.

#### **Sec. 12. TRANSFERRING RELIABILITY ADMINISTRATOR RESPONSIBILITIES.**

All responsibilities, as defined in Minnesota Statutes, section 15.039, subdivision 1, held by the Public Utilities Commission relating to the reliability administrator under Minnesota Statutes, section 216C.052, are transferred to the Minnesota Department of Commerce under Minnesota Statutes, section 15.039.

#### **Sec. 13. TRANSMISSION AUTHORITY AND INTERCONNECTION EVALUATIONS.**

The reliability administrator shall, in consultation with interested stakeholders:

(1) review the structures, powers, and duties for constructing, owning, maintaining, and operating transmission facilities of state transmission authorities established in Kansas, North Dakota, South Dakota, and Wyoming, and evaluate whether the existence of a similar organization in Minnesota would have the potential to increase the reliability and efficiency of the electrical grid in the state, hasten the development of needed transmission lines, accelerate the development of renewable energy projects, especially in rural areas of the state, and reduce delivered energy costs to Minnesota ratepayers; and

(2) assess the potential for and barriers to interconnecting dispersed generation projects to locations on the electrical grid where a generator interconnection would not be subject to the interconnection rules of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission or the Midwest Independent System Operator.

No technical or engineering analyses are necessary in order to complete these duties. The reliability administrator must report findings and any recommendations to the chairs of the senate and house of representatives committees with jurisdiction over energy policy by February 15, 2008.

Sec. 14. **REPEALER.**

Laws 2007, chapter 3, section 3, is repealed."

Delete the title and insert:

"A bill for an act relating to energy; amending provisions regarding community-based energy development projects; regulating utility ownership and cost recovery for renewable energy projects; requiring Public Utilities Commission to establish policy regarding curtailment payments; regulating green pricing programs; requiring studies of potential for dispersed generation projects; extending expiration of reliability administrator position and transferring the position from Public Utilities Commission to Department of Commerce; limiting the length of wind easements if a project is not constructed; requiring reliability administrator to study need for and authority of state electric transmission authority and of enhancing ease of interconnecting dispersed generation projects to the grid; specifying aggregation procedures for purposes of permitting wind projects; allowing counties to issue permits for large wind energy conversion systems; removing sunset for renewable energy option program for utility customers; amending Minnesota Statutes 2006, sections 216B.1612; 216B.1645, by adding subdivisions; 216B.169; 216C.052; 500.30, subdivision 2; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 216B; 216F; repealing Laws 2007, chapter 3, section 3."

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Ways and Means.

The report was adopted.

Carlson from the Committee on Finance to which was referred:

S. F. No. 145, A bill for an act relating to energy; providing for community-based energy development; requiring a plan to reduce greenhouse gas emissions; amending Minnesota Statutes 2006, sections 216B.1612, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 5, by adding a subdivision; 216B.1691, by adding a subdivision; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 216F.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"ARTICLE 1  
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1. **TITLE.**

This act may be cited as the Next Generation Energy Act of 2007.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 216C.05, is amended to read:

**216C.05 FINDINGS AND PURPOSE.**

**Subdivision 1. Energy planning.** The legislature finds and declares that continued growth in demand for energy will cause severe social and economic dislocations, and that the state has a vital interest in providing for: increased efficiency in energy consumption, the development and use of renewable energy resources wherever possible, and the creation of an effective energy forecasting, planning, and education program.

The legislature further finds and declares that the protection of life, safety, and financial security for citizens during an energy crisis is of paramount importance.

Therefore, the legislature finds that it is in the public interest to review, analyze, and encourage those energy programs that will minimize the need for annual increases in fossil fuel consumption by 1990 and the need for additional electrical generating plants, and provide for an optimum combination of energy sources consistent with environmental protection and the protection of citizens.

The legislature intends to monitor, through energy policy planning and implementation, the transition from historic growth in energy demand to a period when demand for traditional fuels becomes stable and the supply of renewable energy resources is readily available and adequately utilized.

**Subd. 2. Energy policy goals.** It is the energy policy of the state of Minnesota that:

(1) the per capita use of fossil fuel as an energy input be reduced by 15 percent by the year 2015, through increased reliance on energy efficiency and renewable energy alternatives; and

(2) 25 percent of the total energy used in the state be derived from renewable energy resources by the year 2025.

ARTICLE 2  
ENERGY EFFICIENCY AND CONSERVATION

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 216B.16, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

**Subdivision 1. Notice.** Unless the commission otherwise orders, no public utility shall change a rate which has been duly established under this chapter, except upon 60 days' notice to the commission. The notice shall include statements of facts, expert opinions, substantiating documents, and exhibits, supporting the change requested, and state the change proposed to be made in the rates then in force and the time when the modified rates will go into effect. If the filing utility does not have an approved energy conservation improvement plan on file with the department, it shall also include in its notice an energy conservation plan pursuant to section 216B.241. A filing utility subject to rate regulation under section 216B.026 shall reference in its notice the energy conservation

improvement plans of the generation and transmission cooperative providing energy conservation improvement programs to members of the filing utility pursuant to section 216B.241. The filing utility shall give written notice, as approved by the commission, of the proposed change to the governing body of each municipality and county in the area affected. All proposed changes shall be shown by filing new schedules or shall be plainly indicated upon schedules on file and in force at the time.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 216B.16, subdivision 6b, is amended to read:

Subd. 6b. **Energy conservation improvement.** (a) Except as otherwise provided in this subdivision, all investments and expenses of a public utility as defined in section 216B.241, subdivision 1, paragraph ~~(e)~~ (i), incurred in connection with energy conservation improvements shall be recognized and included by the commission in the determination of just and reasonable rates as if the investments and expenses were directly made or incurred by the utility in furnishing utility service.

(b) ~~After December 31, 1999,~~ Investments and expenses for energy conservation improvements shall not be included by the commission in the determination of (i) just and reasonable electric and gas rates for retail electric and gas service provided to large electric customer facilities that have been exempted by the commissioner of the department pursuant to section 216B.241, subdivision 1a, paragraph (b); or (ii) just and reasonable gas rates for large energy facilities. ~~However, no public utility shall be prevented from recovering its investment in energy conservation improvements from all customers that were made on or before December 31, 1999, in compliance with the requirements of section 216B.241.~~

(c) The commission may permit a public utility to file rate schedules providing for annual recovery of the costs of energy conservation improvements. These rate schedules may be applicable to less than all the customers in a class of retail customers if necessary to reflect the ~~differing minimum spending~~ requirements of section 216B.241, ~~subdivision 1a.~~ ~~After December 31, 1999,~~ The commission shall allow a public utility, without requiring a general rate filing under this section, to reduce the electric and gas rates applicable to large electric customer facilities that have been exempted by the commissioner of the department pursuant to section 216B.241, subdivision 1a, paragraph (b), and to reduce the gas rate applicable to a large energy facility by an amount that reflects the elimination of energy conservation improvement investments or expenditures for those facilities required on or before December 31, 1999. In the event that the commission has set electric or gas rates based on the use of an accounting methodology that results in the cost of conservation improvements being recovered from utility customers over a period of years, the rate reduction may occur in a series of steps to coincide with the recovery of balances due to the utility for conservation improvements made by the utility on or before December 31, ~~1999~~ 2007.

Sec. 3. **[216B.1636] RECOVERY OF ELECTRIC UTILITY INFRASTRUCTURE COSTS.**

Subdivision 1. Definitions. (a) "Electric utility" means a public utility as defined in section 216B.02, subdivision 4, that furnishes electric service to retail customers.

(b) "Electric utility infrastructure costs" or "EUIC" means costs for electric utility infrastructure projects that were not included in the electric utility's rate base in its most recent general rate case.

(c) "Electric utility infrastructure projects" means projects that:

(1) replace or modify existing electric utility infrastructure, including utility-owned buildings, if the replacement or modification is shown to conserve energy or use energy more efficiently, consistent with section 216B.241, subdivision 1c; or

(2) conserve energy or use energy more efficiently by using waste heat recovery converted into electricity as defined in section 216B.241, subdivision 1, paragraph (n).

Subd. 2. **Filing.** (a) The commission may approve an electric utility's petition for a rate schedule to recover EUIC under this section. An electric utility may petition the commission to recover a rate of return, income taxes on the rate of return, incremental property taxes, if any, plus incremental depreciation expense associated with EUIC.

(b) The filing is subject to the following:

(1) an electric utility may submit a filing under this section no more than once per year; and

(2) an electric utility must file sufficient information to satisfy the commission regarding the proposed EUIC or be subject to denial by the commission, which information includes, but is not limited to:

(i) the location, description, and costs associated with the project;

(ii) evidence that the electric utility infrastructure project will conserve energy or use energy more efficiently than similar utility facilities currently used by the electric utility;

(iii) the proposed schedule for implementation;

(iv) a description of the costs, and salvage value, if any, associated with the existing infrastructure replaced or modified as a result of the project;

(v) the proposed rate design and an explanation of why the proposed rate design is in the public interest;

(vi) the magnitude and timing of any known future electric utility projects that the utility may seek to recover under this section;

(vii) the magnitude of EUIC in relation to the electric utility's base revenue as approved by the commission in the electric utility's most recent general rate case, exclusive of fuel cost adjustments;

(viii) the magnitude of EUIC in relation to the electric utility's capital expenditures since its most recent general rate case;

(ix) the amount of time since the utility last filed a general rate case and the utility's reasons for seeking recovery outside of a general rate case;

(x) documentation supporting the calculation of the EUIC; and

(xi) a cost and benefit analysis showing that the electric utility infrastructure project is in the public interest.

(c) Upon approval of the proposed projects and associated EUIC rate schedule, the utility may implement the electric utility infrastructure projects.

Subd. 3. **Commission authority; orders.** The commission may issue orders necessary to implement and administer this section.

#### Sec. 4. **[216B.2401] ENERGY CONSERVATION POLICY GOAL.**

It is the energy policy of the state of Minnesota to achieve annual energy savings equal to 1.5 percent of annual retail energy sales of electricity and natural gas directly through energy conservation improvement programs and rate design, and indirectly through energy codes and appliance standards, programs designed to transform the market or change consumer behavior, efficiency improvements to the utility infrastructure and system, and other efforts to promote energy efficiency and energy conservation.

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 216B.241, is amended to read:

**216B.241 ENERGY CONSERVATION IMPROVEMENT.**

Subdivision 1. **Definitions.** For purposes of this section and section 216B.16, subdivision 6b, the terms defined in this subdivision have the meanings given them.

(a) "Commission" means the Public Utilities Commission.

(b) "Commissioner" means the commissioner of commerce.

(c) "Customer facility" means all buildings, structures, equipment, and installations at a single site.

(d) "Department" means the Department of Commerce.

(e) "Energy conservation" means demand-side management of energy supplies resulting in a net reduction in energy use. Load management that reduces overall energy use is energy conservation.

(f) "Energy conservation improvement" means a project that results in energy efficiency or energy conservation. Energy conservation improvement does not include waste heat recovery converted into electricity or electric utility infrastructure projects approved by the commission under section 216B.1636.

(g) "Energy efficiency" refers to measures or programs, including energy conservation measures or programs, that target consumer behavior, equipment, processes, or devices designed to produce either an absolute decrease in consumption of electric energy or natural gas or a decrease in consumption of electric energy or natural gas on a per unit of production basis without a reduction in the quality or level of service provided to the energy consumer.

~~(g)~~ (h) "Gross annual retail energy sales" means annual electric sales to all retail customers in a utility's or association's Minnesota service territory or natural gas throughput to all retail customers, including natural gas transportation customers, on a utility's distribution system in Minnesota. For purposes of this section, gross annual retail energy sales exclude gas sales to a large energy facility and gas and electric sales to a large electric customer facility exempted by the commissioner under subdivision 1a, paragraph (b).

(i) "Investments and expenses of a public utility" includes the investments and expenses incurred by a public utility in connection with an energy conservation improvement, including but not limited to:

(1) the differential in interest cost between the market rate and the rate charged on a no-interest or below-market interest loan made by a public utility to a customer for the purchase or installation of an energy conservation improvement;

(2) the difference between the utility's cost of purchase or installation of energy conservation improvements and any price charged by a public utility to a customer for such improvements.

~~(h)~~ (j) "Large electric customer facility" means a customer facility that imposes a peak electrical demand on an electric utility's system of not less than 20,000 kilowatts, measured in the same way as the utility that serves the customer facility measures electrical demand for billing purposes, and for which electric services are provided at retail on a single bill by a utility operating in the state.

~~(i)~~ (k) "Large energy facility" has the meaning given it in section 216B.2421, subdivision 2, clause (1).



(l) "Load management" means an activity, service, or technology to change the timing or the efficiency of a customer's use of energy that allows a utility or a customer to respond to wholesale market fluctuations or to reduce ~~the overall~~ peak demand for energy or capacity.

(m) "Low-income programs" means energy conservation improvement programs that directly serve the needs of low-income persons, including low-income renters.

(n) "Waste heat recovery converted into electricity" means an energy recovery process that converts otherwise lost energy from the heat of exhaust stacks or pipes used for engines or manufacturing or industrial processes, or the reduction of high pressure in water or gas pipelines.

Subd. 1a. **Investment, expenditure, and contribution; public utility.** (a) For purposes of this subdivision and subdivision 2, "public utility" has the meaning given it in section 216B.02, subdivision 4. Each public utility shall spend and invest for energy conservation improvements under this subdivision and subdivision 2 the following amounts:

(1) for a utility that furnishes gas service, 0.5 percent of its gross operating revenues from service provided in the state;

(2) for a utility that furnishes electric service, 1.5 percent of its gross operating revenues from service provided in the state; and

(3) for a utility that furnishes electric service and that operates a nuclear-powered electric generating plant within the state, two percent of its gross operating revenues from service provided in the state.

For purposes of this paragraph (a), "gross operating revenues" do not include revenues from large electric customer facilities exempted by the commissioner under paragraph (b).

(b) The owner of a large electric customer facility may petition the commissioner to exempt both electric and gas utilities serving the large energy customer facility from the investment and expenditure requirements of paragraph (a) with respect to retail revenues attributable to the facility. At a minimum, the petition must be supported by evidence relating to competitive or economic pressures on the customer and a showing by the customer of reasonable efforts to identify, evaluate, and implement cost-effective conservation improvements at the facility. If a petition is filed on or before October 1 of any year, the order of the commissioner to exempt revenues attributable to the facility can be effective no earlier than January 1 of the following year. The commissioner shall not grant an exemption if the commissioner determines that granting the exemption is contrary to the public interest. The commissioner may, after investigation, rescind any exemption granted under this paragraph upon a determination that ~~cost effective~~ the customer is not continuing to make reasonable efforts to identify, evaluate, and implement energy conservation improvements are available at the large electric customer facility. ~~For the purposes of this paragraph, "cost-effective" means that the projected total cost of the energy conservation improvement at the large electric customer facility is less than the projected present value of the energy and demand savings resulting from the energy conservation improvement.~~ For the purposes of investigations by the commissioner under this paragraph, the owner of any large electric customer facility shall, upon request, provide the commissioner with updated information comparable to that originally supplied in or with the owner's original petition under this paragraph.

(c) The commissioner may require investments or spending greater than the amounts required under this subdivision for a public utility whose most recent advance forecast required under section 216B.2422 or 216C.17 projects a peak demand deficit of 100 megawatts or greater within five years under midrange forecast assumptions.

(d) A public utility or owner of a large electric customer facility may appeal a decision of the commissioner under paragraph (b) or (c) to the commission under subdivision 2. In reviewing a decision of the commissioner under paragraph (b) or (c), the commission shall rescind the decision if it finds that the required investments or spending will:

- (1) not result in cost-effective energy conservation improvements; or
- (2) otherwise not be in the public interest.

~~(e) Each utility shall determine what portion of the amount it sets aside for conservation improvement will be used for conservation improvements under subdivision 2 and what portion it will contribute to the energy and conservation account established in subdivision 2a. A public utility may propose to the commissioner to designate that all or a portion of funds contributed to the account established in subdivision 2a be used for research and development projects that can best be implemented on a statewide basis. Contributions must be remitted to the commissioner by February 1 of each year. Nothing in this subdivision prohibits a public utility from spending or investing for energy conservation improvement more than required in this subdivision.~~

Subd. 1b. **Conservation improvement by cooperative association or municipality.** (a) This subdivision applies to:

- (1) a cooperative electric association that provides retail service to its members;
- (2) a municipality that provides electric service to retail customers; and
- (3) a municipality with ~~gross operating revenues in excess of \$5,000,000 from sales of~~ more than 1,000,000,000 cubic feet in annual throughput sales to natural gas to retail customers.

(b) Each cooperative electric association and municipality subject to this subdivision shall spend and invest for energy conservation improvements under this subdivision the following amounts:

- (1) for a municipality, 0.5 percent of its gross operating revenues from the sale of gas and 1.5 percent of its gross operating revenues from the sale of electricity, excluding gross operating revenues from electric and gas service provided in the state to large electric customer facilities; and
- (2) for a cooperative electric association, 1.5 percent of its gross operating revenues from service provided in the state, excluding gross operating revenues from service provided in the state to large electric customer facilities indirectly through a distribution cooperative electric association.

(c) Each municipality and cooperative electric association subject to this subdivision shall identify and implement energy conservation improvement spending and investments that are appropriate for the municipality or association, except that a municipality or association may not spend or invest for energy conservation improvements that directly benefit a large energy facility or a large electric customer facility for which the commissioner has issued an exemption under subdivision 1a, paragraph (b).

(d) Each municipality and cooperative electric association subject to this subdivision may spend and invest annually up to ten percent of the total amount required to be spent and invested on energy conservation improvements under this subdivision on research and development projects that meet the definition of energy conservation improvement in subdivision 1 and that are funded directly by the municipality or cooperative electric association.

(e) Load-management activities ~~that do not reduce energy use but that increase the efficiency of the electric system~~ may be used to meet 50 percent of the conservation investment and spending requirements of this subdivision.

(f) A generation and transmission cooperative electric association that provides energy services to cooperative electric associations that provide electric service at retail to consumers may invest in energy conservation improvements on behalf of the associations it serves and may fulfill the conservation, spending, reporting, and energy savings goals on an aggregate basis. A municipal power agency or other not-for-profit entity that provides energy service to municipal utilities that provide electric service at retail may invest in energy conservation improvements on behalf of the municipal utilities it serves and may fulfill the conservation, spending, reporting, and energy savings goals on an aggregate basis, under an agreement between the municipal power agency or not-for-profit entity and each municipal utility for funding the investments.

~~(g) At least every four years, on a schedule determined by the commissioner, each municipality or cooperative shall file an overview of its conservation improvement plan with the commissioner. With this overview, Each municipality or cooperative shall file energy conservation improvement plans by June 1 on a schedule determined by order of the commissioner, but at least every three years. Plans received by June 1 must be approved or approved as modified by the commissioner by December 1 of the same year. The municipality or cooperative shall also provide an evaluation to the commissioner detailing its energy conservation improvement spending and investments for the previous period. The evaluation must briefly describe each conservation program and must specify the energy savings or increased efficiency in the use of energy within the service territory of the utility or association that is the result of the spending and investments. The evaluation must analyze the cost-effectiveness of the utility's or association's conservation programs, using a list of baseline energy and capacity savings assumptions developed in consultation with the department. The commissioner shall review each evaluation and make recommendations, where appropriate, to the municipality or association to increase the effectiveness of conservation improvement activities. Up to three percent of a utility's conservation spending obligation under this section may be used for program pre evaluation, testing, and monitoring and program evaluation. The overview and evaluation filed by a municipality with less than 60,000,000 kilowatt hours in annual retail sales of electric service may consist of a letter from the governing board of the municipal utility to the department providing the amount of annual conservation spending required of that municipality and certifying that the required amount has been spent on conservation programs pursuant to this subdivision.~~

~~(h) The commissioner shall also review each evaluation for whether a portion of the money spent on residential conservation improvement programs is devoted to programs that directly address the needs of renters and low-income persons unless an insufficient number of appropriate programs are available. For the purposes of this subdivision and subdivision 2, "low income" means an income at or below 50 percent of the state median income.~~

~~(i) As part of its spending for conservation improvement, a municipality or association may contribute to the energy and conservation account. A municipality or association may propose to the commissioner to designate that all or a portion of funds contributed to the account be used for research and development projects that can best be implemented on a statewide basis. Any amount contributed must be remitted to the commissioner by February 1 of each year.~~

~~(j) (h) A municipality may spend up to 50 percent of its required spending under this section to refurbish an existing district heating or cooling system. This paragraph expires until July 1, 2007. From July 1, 2007, through June 30, 2011, expenditures made to refurbish a district heating or cooling system are considered to be load-management activities under paragraph (e). This paragraph expires July 1, 2011.~~

(i) The commissioner shall consider and may require a utility, association, or other entity providing energy efficiency and conservation services under this section to undertake a program suggested by an outside source, including a political subdivision, nonprofit corporation, or community organization.

Subd. 1c. **Energy-saving goals.** (a) The commissioner shall establish energy-saving goals for energy conservation improvement expenditures and shall evaluate an energy conservation improvement program on how well it meets the goals set.

(b) Each individual utility and association shall have an annual energy-savings goal equivalent to 1.5 percent of gross annual retail energy sales unless modified by the commissioner under paragraph (d). The savings goals must be calculated based on the most recent three-year weather normalized average.

(c) The commissioner must adopt a filing schedule that is designed to have all utilities and associations operating under an energy savings plan by calendar year 2010.

(d) In its energy conservation improvement plan filing, a utility or association may request the commissioner to adjust its annual energy savings percentage goal based on its historical conservation investment experience, customer class makeup, load growth, a conservation potential study, or other factors the commissioner determines warrants an adjustment. The commissioner may not approve a plan that provides for an annual energy savings goal of less than one percent of gross annual retail energy sales from energy conservation improvements. A utility or association may include in its energy conservation plan energy savings from an electric utility infrastructure project or waste heat recovery converted into electricity project approved by the commission under section 216B.1636 that may count as energy savings in addition to the minimum energy savings goal of at least one percent for energy conservation improvements. Electric utility infrastructure projects must result in increased energy efficiency greater than that which would have occurred through normal maintenance activity.

(e) An energy savings goal is not satisfied by attaining the revenue expenditure requirements of subdivisions 1a and 1b, but can only be satisfied by meeting the energy savings goal established in this subdivision.

(f) An association or utility is not required to make energy conservation investments to attain the energy savings goals of this subdivision that are not cost-effective even if the investment is necessary to attain the energy savings goals. For the purpose of this paragraph, in determining cost-effectiveness, the commissioner shall consider the costs and benefits to ratepayers, the utility, participants, and society. In addition, the commissioner shall consider the rate at which an association or municipal utility is increasing its energy savings and its expenditures on energy conservation.

(g) On an annual basis, the commissioner shall produce and make publicly available a report on the annual energy savings and estimated carbon dioxide reductions achieved by the energy conservation improvement programs for the two most recent years for which data is available. The commissioner shall report on program performance both in the aggregate and for each entity filing an energy conservation improvement plan for approval or review by the commissioner.

(h) By January 15, 2010, the commissioner shall report to the legislature whether the spending requirements under subdivisions 1a and 1b are necessary to achieve the energy savings goals established in this subdivision.

Subd. 1d. ~~Cooperative conservation investment increase phase in~~ **Technical assistance.** ~~The increase in required conservation improvement expenditures by a cooperative electric association that results from the amendments in Laws 2001, chapter 212, article 8, section 6, to subdivision 1b, paragraph (a), clause (1), must be phased in as follows:~~

- ~~(1) at least 25 percent shall be effective in year 2002;~~
- ~~(2) at least 50 percent shall be effective in year 2003;~~
- ~~(3) at least 75 percent shall be effective in year 2004; and~~
- ~~(4) all of the increase shall be effective in year 2005 and thereafter.~~

The commissioner shall evaluate energy conservation improvement programs on the basis of cost-effectiveness and the reliability of the technologies employed. The commissioner shall, by order, establish, maintain, and update energy savings assumptions that must be used when filing energy conservation improvement programs. The commissioner shall establish an inventory of the most effective energy conservation programs, techniques, and technologies, and encourage all Minnesota utilities to implement them, where appropriate, in their service territories. The commissioner shall describe these programs in sufficient detail to provide a utility reasonable guidance concerning implementation. The commissioner shall prioritize the opportunities in order of potential energy savings and in order of cost-effectiveness. The commissioner may contract with a third party to carry out any of the commissioner's duties under this subdivision, and to obtain technical assistance to evaluate the effectiveness of any conservation improvement program. The commissioner may assess up to \$800,000 annually until June 30, 2009, and \$450,000 annually thereafter for the purposes of this subdivision. The assessments must be deposited into the energy and conservation account created under subdivision 2a. An assessment made under this subdivision is not subject to the cap on assessments provided by section 216B.62, or any other law.

Subd. 1e. **Applied research and development grants.** The commissioner may, by order, approve and make grants for applied research and development projects of general applicability that identify new technologies or strategies to maximize energy savings, improve the effectiveness of energy conservation programs, or document the carbon dioxide reductions from energy conservation programs. When approving projects, the commissioner shall consider proposals and comments from utilities and other interested parties. The commissioner may assess up to \$3,600,000 annually for the purposes of this subdivision. The assessments must be deposited into the energy and conservation account created under subdivision 2a. An assessment made under this subdivision is not subject to the cap on assessments provided by section 216B.62, or any other law.

Subd. 1f. **Facilities energy efficiency.** (a) The Department of Administration and the Department of Commerce shall maintain and, as needed, revise the sustainable building design guidelines developed under section 16B.325.

(b) The Department of Administration and the Department of Commerce shall maintain and update the benchmarking tool developed under Laws 2001, chapter 212, article 1, section 3, so that all public buildings can use the benchmarking tool to maintain energy use information for the purposes of establishing energy efficiency benchmarks, tracking building performance, and measuring the results of energy efficiency and conservation improvements.

(c) The commissioner shall require that utilities include in their conservation improvement plans programs that facilitate professional engineering verification to qualify a building as Energy Star-labeled or as Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) certified. The state goal is to achieve certification of 1,000 commercial buildings as Energy Star-labeled, and 100 commercial buildings as LEED-certified by December 31, 2010.

(d) The commissioner may assess up to \$500,000 annually for the purposes of this subdivision. The assessments must be deposited into the energy and conservation account created under subdivision 2a. An assessment made under this subdivision is not subject to the cap on assessments provided by section 216B.62, or any other law.

Subd. 2. **Programs.** (a) The commissioner may require public utilities to make investments and expenditures in energy conservation improvements, explicitly setting forth the interest rates, prices, and terms under which the improvements must be offered to the customers. The required programs must cover no more than a ~~four year~~ three-year period. Public utilities shall file conservation improvement plans by June 1, on a schedule determined by order of the commissioner, but at least every ~~four~~ three years. Plans received by a public utility by June 1 must be approved or approved as modified by the commissioner by December 1 of that same year. ~~The commissioner shall give special consideration and encouragement to programs that bring about significant net savings through the use of energy efficient lighting.~~ The commissioner shall evaluate the program on the basis of cost-effectiveness and the reliability of technologies employed. The commissioner's order must provide to the extent practicable for a free choice, by consumers participating in the program, of the device, method, material, or project constituting the energy

conservation improvement and for a free choice of the seller, installer, or contractor of the energy conservation improvement, provided that the device, method, material, or project seller, installer, or contractor is duly licensed, certified, approved, or qualified, including under the residential conservation services program, where applicable.

(b) The commissioner may require a utility to make an energy conservation improvement investment or expenditure whenever the commissioner finds that the improvement will result in energy savings at a total cost to the utility less than the cost to the utility to produce or purchase an equivalent amount of new supply of energy. The commissioner shall nevertheless ensure that every public utility operate one or more programs under periodic review by the department.

(c) Each public utility subject to subdivision 1a may spend and invest annually up to ten percent of the total amount required to be spent and invested on energy conservation improvements under this section by the utility on research and development projects that meet the definition of energy conservation improvement in subdivision 1 and that are funded directly by the public utility.

(d) A public utility may not spend for or invest in energy conservation improvements that directly benefit a large energy facility or a large electric customer facility for which the commissioner has issued an exemption pursuant to subdivision 1a, paragraph (b). The commissioner shall consider and may require a utility to undertake a program suggested by an outside source, including a political subdivision ~~or~~, a nonprofit corporation, or community organization.

~~(e) The commissioner may, by order, establish a list of programs that may be offered as energy conservation improvements by a public utility, municipal utility, cooperative electric association, or other entity providing conservation services pursuant to this section. The list of programs may include rebates for high efficiency appliances, rebates or subsidies for high efficiency lamps, small business energy audits, and building recommissioning. The commissioner may, by order, change this list to add or subtract programs as the commissioner determines is necessary to promote efficient and effective conservation programs.~~

~~(f) The commissioner shall ensure that a portion of the money spent on residential conservation improvement programs is devoted to programs that directly address the needs of renters and low income persons, in proportion to the amount the utility has historically spent on such programs based on the most recent three year average relative to the utility's total conservation spending under this section, unless an insufficient number of appropriate programs are available.~~

~~(g)~~ (e) A utility, a political subdivision, or a nonprofit or community organization that has suggested a program, the attorney general acting on behalf of consumers and small business interests, or a utility customer that has suggested a program and is not represented by the attorney general under section 8.33 may petition the commission to modify or revoke a department decision under this section, and the commission may do so if it determines that the program is not cost-effective, does not adequately address the residential conservation improvement needs of low-income persons, has a long-range negative effect on one or more classes of customers, or is otherwise not in the public interest. The commission shall reject a petition that, on its face, fails to make a reasonable argument that a program is not in the public interest.

~~(h)~~ (f) The commissioner may order a public utility to include, with the filing of the utility's proposed conservation improvement plan under paragraph (a), the results of an independent audit of the utility's conservation improvement programs and expenditures performed by the department or an auditor with experience in the provision of energy conservation and energy efficiency services approved by the commissioner and chosen by the utility. The audit must specify the energy savings or increased efficiency in the use of energy within the service territory of the utility that is the result of the spending and investments. The audit must evaluate the cost-effectiveness of the utility's conservation programs.

~~(i) Up to three percent of a utility's conservation spending obligation under this section may be used for program pre-evaluation, testing, and monitoring and program audit and evaluation.~~

Subd. 2a. **Energy and conservation account.** The energy and conservation account is established in the special revenue fund in the state treasury. ~~The commissioner must deposit money contributed under subdivisions 1a and 1b assessed or contributed under subdivisions 1d, 1e, 1f, and 7 in the energy and conservation account in the general special revenue fund. Money in the account is appropriated to the department for programs designed to meet the energy conservation needs of low income persons and to make energy conservation improvements in areas not adequately served under subdivision 2, including research and development projects included in the definition of energy conservation improvement in subdivision 4 the purposes of subdivisions 1d, 1e, 1f, and 7. Interest on money in the account accrues to the account. Using information collected under section 216C.02, subdivision 1, paragraph (b), the commissioner must, to the extent possible, allocate enough money to programs for low income persons to assure that their needs are being adequately addressed. The commissioner must request the commissioner of finance to transfer money from the account to the commissioner of education for an energy conservation program for low-income persons. In establishing programs, the commissioner must consult political subdivisions and nonprofit and community organizations, especially organizations engaged in providing energy and weatherization assistance to low income persons. At least one program must address the need for energy conservation improvements in areas in which a high percentage of residents use fuel oil or propane to fuel their source of home heating. The commissioner may contract with a political subdivision, a nonprofit or community organization, a public utility, a municipality, or a cooperative electric association to implement its programs. The commissioner may provide grants to any person to conduct research and development projects in accordance with this section.~~

Subd. 2b. **Recovery of expenses.** The commission shall allow a utility to recover expenses resulting from a conservation improvement program required by the department and contributions and assessments to the energy and conservation account, unless the recovery would be inconsistent with a financial incentive proposal approved by the commission. The commission shall allow a cooperative electric association subject to rate regulation under section 216B.026, to recover expenses resulting from energy conservation improvement programs, load management programs, and assessments and contributions to the energy and conservation account unless the recovery would be inconsistent with a financial incentive proposal approved by the commission. In addition, a utility may file annually, or the Public Utilities Commission may require the utility to file, and the commission may approve, rate schedules containing provisions for the automatic adjustment of charges for utility service in direct relation to changes in the expenses of the utility for real and personal property taxes, fees, and permits, the amounts of which the utility cannot control. A public utility is eligible to file for adjustment for real and personal property taxes, fees, and permits under this subdivision only if, in the year previous to the year in which it files for adjustment, it has spent or invested at least 1.75 percent of its gross revenues from provision of electric service, excluding gross operating revenues from electric service provided in the state to large electric customer facilities for which the commissioner has issued an exemption under subdivision 1a, paragraph (b), and 0.6 percent of its gross revenues from provision of gas service, excluding gross operating revenues from gas services provided in the state to large electric customer facilities for which the commissioner has issued an exemption under subdivision 1a, paragraph (b), for that year for energy conservation improvements under this section.

Subd. 2c. **Performance incentives.** By December 31, 2008, the commission shall review any incentive plan for energy conservation improvement it has approved under section 216B.16, subdivision 6c, and adjust the utility performance incentives to recognize making progress toward and meeting the energy savings goals established in subdivision 1c.

Subd. 3. **Ownership of energy conservation improvement.** An energy conservation improvement made to or installed in a building in accordance with this section, except systems owned by the utility and designed to turn off, limit, or vary the delivery of energy, are the exclusive property of the owner of the building except to the extent that the improvement is subjected to a security interest in favor of the utility in case of a loan to the building owner. The utility has no liability for loss, damage or injury caused directly or indirectly by an energy conservation improvement except for negligence by the utility in purchase, installation, or modification of the product.

Subd. 4. **Federal law prohibitions.** If investments by public utilities in energy conservation improvements are in any manner prohibited or restricted by federal law and there is a provision under which the prohibition or restriction may be waived, then the commission, the governor, or any other necessary state agency or officer shall take all necessary and appropriate steps to secure a waiver with respect to those public utility investments in energy conservation improvements included in this section.

Subd. 5. **Efficient lighting program.** (a) Each public utility, cooperative electric association, and municipal utility that provides electric service to retail customers shall include as part of its conservation improvement activities a program to strongly encourage the use of fluorescent and high-intensity discharge lamps. The program must include at least a public information campaign to encourage use of the lamps and proper management of spent lamps by all customer classifications.

(b) A public utility that provides electric service at retail to 200,000 or more customers shall establish, either directly or through contracts with other persons, including lamp manufacturers, distributors, wholesalers, and retailers and local government units, a system to collect for delivery to a reclamation or recycling facility spent fluorescent and high-intensity discharge lamps from households and from small businesses as defined in section 645.445 that generate an average of fewer than ten spent lamps per year.

(c) A collection system must include establishing reasonably convenient locations for collecting spent lamps from households and financial incentives sufficient to encourage spent lamp generators to take the lamps to the collection locations. Financial incentives may include coupons for purchase of new fluorescent or high-intensity discharge lamps, a cash back system, or any other financial incentive or group of incentives designed to collect the maximum number of spent lamps from households and small businesses that is reasonably feasible.

(d) A public utility that provides electric service at retail to fewer than 200,000 customers, a cooperative electric association, or a municipal utility that provides electric service at retail to customers may establish a collection system under paragraphs (b) and (c) as part of conservation improvement activities required under this section.

(e) The commissioner of the Pollution Control Agency may not, unless clearly required by federal law, require a public utility, cooperative electric association, or municipality that establishes a household fluorescent and high-intensity discharge lamp collection system under this section to manage the lamps as hazardous waste as long as the lamps are managed to avoid breakage and are delivered to a recycling or reclamation facility that removes mercury and other toxic materials contained in the lamps prior to placement of the lamps in solid waste.

(f) If a public utility, cooperative electric association, or municipal utility contracts with a local government unit to provide a collection system under this subdivision, the contract must provide for payment to the local government unit of all the unit's incremental costs of collecting and managing spent lamps.

(g) All the costs incurred by a public utility, cooperative electric association, or municipal utility for promotion and collection of fluorescent and high-intensity discharge lamps under this subdivision are conservation improvement spending under this section.

Subd. 6. **Renewable energy research.** (a) A public utility that owns a nuclear generation facility in the state shall spend five percent of the total amount that utility is required to spend under this section to support basic and applied research and demonstration activities at the University of Minnesota Initiative for Renewable Energy and the Environment for the development of renewable energy sources and technologies. The utility shall transfer the required amount to the University of Minnesota on or before July 1 of each year and that annual amount shall be deducted from the amount of money the utility is required to spend under this section. The University of Minnesota shall transfer at least ten percent of these funds to at least one rural campus or experiment station.

(b) Research funded under this subdivision shall include:



(1) development of environmentally sound production, distribution, and use of energy, chemicals, and materials from renewable sources;

(2) processing and utilization of agricultural and forestry plant products and other bio-based, renewable sources as a substitute for fossil-fuel-based energy, chemicals, and materials using a variety of means including biocatalysis, biorefining, and fermentation;

(3) conversion of state wind resources to hydrogen for energy storage and transportation to areas of energy demand;

(4) improvements in scalable hydrogen fuel cell technologies; and

(5) production of hydrogen from bio-based, renewable sources; and sequestration of carbon.

(c) Notwithstanding other law to the contrary, the utility may, but is not required to, spend more than two percent of its gross operating revenues from service provided in this state under this section or section 216B.2411.

(d) This subdivision expires June 30, 2008.

**Subd. 7. Low-income programs.** (a) The commissioner shall ensure that each utility and association provides low-income programs. When approving spending and energy savings goals for low-income programs, the commissioner shall consider historic spending and participation levels, energy savings for low-income programs, and the number of low-income persons residing in the utility's service territory. A utility that furnishes gas service must spend at least 0.2 percent of its gross operating revenue from residential customers in the state on low-income programs. A utility or association that furnishes electric service must spend at least 0.1 percent of its gross operating revenue from residential customers in the state on low-income programs. For a generation and transmission cooperative association, this requirement shall apply to each association's members' aggregate gross operating revenue from sale of electricity to residential customers in the state. Beginning in 2010, a utility or association that furnishes electric service must spend 0.2 percent of its gross operating revenue from residential customers in the state on low-income programs.

(b) To meet the requirements of paragraph (a), a utility or association may contribute funds to the energy and conservation account. An energy conservation improvement plan must state the amount, if any, of low-income energy conservation improvement funds the utility or association will contribute to the energy and conservation account. Contributions must be remitted to the commissioner by February 1 of each year.

(c) The commissioner shall establish low-income programs to utilize funds contributed to the energy and conservation account under paragraph (b). In establishing low-income programs, the commissioner shall consult political subdivisions, utilities, and nonprofit and community organizations, especially organizations engaged in providing energy and weatherization assistance to low-income persons. Money contributed to the energy and conservation account under paragraph (b) must provide programs for low-income persons, including low-income renters, in the service territory of the utility or association providing the funds. The commissioner shall record and report expenditures and energy savings achieved as a result of low-income programs funded through the energy and conservation account in the report required under subdivision 1c, paragraph (g). The commissioner may contract with a political subdivision, nonprofit or community organization, public utility, municipality, or cooperative electric association to implement low-income programs funded through the energy and conservation account.

(d) A utility or association may petition the commissioner to modify its required spending under paragraph (a) if the utility or association and the commissioner have been unable to expend the amount required under paragraph (a) for three consecutive years.

Subd. 8. **Assessment.** The commission or department may assess utilities subject to this section in proportion to their respective gross operating revenue from sales of gas or electric service within the state during the last calendar year to carry out the purposes of subdivisions 1d, 1e, and 1f. Those assessments are not subject to the cap on assessments provided by section 216B.62, or any other law.

Sec. 6. **[216B.2412] DECOUPLING OF ENERGY SALES FROM REVENUES.**

Subdivision 1. **Definition and purpose.** For the purpose of this section, "decoupling" means a regulatory tool designed to separate a utility's revenue from changes in energy sales. The purpose of decoupling is to reduce a utility's disincentive to promote energy efficiency.

Subd. 2. **Decoupling criteria.** The commission shall, by order, establish criteria and standards for decoupling. The commission shall design the criteria and standards to mitigate the impact on public utilities of the energy savings goals under section 216B.241 without adversely affecting utility ratepayers. In designing the criteria, the commission shall consider energy efficiency, weather, and cost of capital, among other factors.

Subd. 3. **Pilot programs.** The commission shall allow one or more rate-regulated utilities to participate in a pilot program to assess the merits of a rate-decoupling strategy to promote energy efficiency and conservation. Each pilot program must utilize the criteria and standards established in subdivision 2 and be designed to determine whether a rate-decoupling strategy achieves energy savings. On or before a date established by the commission, the commission shall require electric and gas utilities that intend to implement a decoupling program to file a decoupling pilot plan which shall be approved or approved as modified by the commission. A pilot program may not exceed three years in length. Any extension beyond three years can only be approved in a general rate case, unless that decoupling program was previously approved as part of a general rate case. The commission shall report on the programs annually to the chairs of the house of representatives and senate committees with primary jurisdiction over energy policy.

Sec. 7. **REVISOR'S INSTRUCTION.**

The revisor of statutes shall change the reference to "section 216B.241, subdivision 1, paragraph (i)" found in section 216B.2411, subdivision 1, to read "section 216B.241, subdivision 1."

Sec. 8. **EFFECTIVE DATE.**

This article is effective July 1, 2007.

ARTICLE 3

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 123B.65, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Energy efficiency contract.** (a) Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, a school district may enter into a guaranteed energy savings contract with a qualified provider to significantly reduce energy or operating costs.

(b) Before entering into a contract under this subdivision, the board shall comply with clauses (1) to (5).

(1) The board must seek proposals from multiple qualified providers by publishing notice of the proposed guaranteed energy savings contract in the board's official newspaper and in other publications if the board determines that additional publication is necessary to notify multiple qualified providers.

(2) The school board must select the qualified provider that best meets the needs of the board. The board must provide public notice of the meeting at which it will select the qualified provider.

(3) The contract between the board and the qualified provider must describe the methods that will be used to calculate the costs of the contract and the operational and energy savings attributable to the contract.

(4) The qualified provider shall issue a report to the board giving a description of all costs of installations, modifications, or remodeling, including costs of design, engineering, installation, maintenance, repairs, or debt service, and giving detailed calculations of the amounts by which energy or operating costs will be reduced and the projected payback schedule in years.

(5) The board must provide published notice of the meeting in which it proposes to award the contract, the names of the parties to the proposed contract, and the contract's purpose.

(c) The board must provide a copy of any contract entered into under paragraph (a) and the report provided under paragraph (b), clause (4), to the commissioner of commerce within 30 days of the effective date of the contract.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 216C.31, is amended to read:

#### **216C.31 ENERGY AUDIT PROGRAMS.**

The commissioner shall develop and administer state programs of energy audits of residential and commercial buildings including those required by United States Code, title 42, sections 8211 to 8222 and sections 8281 to 8284. ~~The commissioner shall continue to administer the residential energy audit program as originally established under the provisions of United States Code, title 42, sections 8211 to 8222; through July 1, 1986 irrespective of any prior expiration date provided in United States Code, title 42, section 8216. The commissioner may approve temporary programs if they are likely to result in the installation of as many conservation measures as would have been installed had the utility met the requirements of United States Code, title 42, sections 8211 to 8222. The Consumer Services Division and the attorney general may release information on consumer comments about the operation of the program to the commissioner the training and qualifications necessary for the auditing of residential and commercial buildings under the auspices of a program created under section 216B.2412.~~

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 471.345, subdivision 13, is amended to read:

Subd. 13. **Energy efficiency projects.** The following definitions apply to this subdivision.

(a) "Energy conservation measure" means a training program or facility alteration designed to reduce energy consumption or operating costs and includes:

(1) insulation of the building structure and systems within the building;

(2) storm windows and doors, caulking or weatherstripping, multiglazed windows and doors, heat absorbing or heat reflective glazed and coated window and door systems, additional glazing, reductions in glass area, and other window and door system modifications that reduce energy consumption;

(3) automatic energy control systems;

(4) heating, ventilating, or air conditioning system modifications or replacements;

(5) replacement or modifications of lighting fixtures to increase the energy efficiency of the lighting system without increasing the overall illumination of a facility, unless an increase in illumination is necessary to conform to the applicable state or local building code for the lighting system after the proposed modifications are made;

(6) energy recovery systems;

(7) cogeneration systems that produce steam or forms of energy such as heat, as well as electricity, for use primarily within a building or complex of buildings;

(8) energy conservation measures that provide long-term operating cost reductions.

(b) "Guaranteed energy savings contract" means a contract for the evaluation and recommendations of energy conservation measures, and for one or more energy conservation measures. The contract must provide that all payments, except obligations on termination of the contract before its expiration, are to be made over time, but not to exceed 15 years from the date of final installation, and the savings are guaranteed to the extent necessary to make payments for the systems.

(c) "Qualified provider" means a person or business experienced in the design, implementation, and installation of energy conservation measures. A qualified provider to whom the contract is awarded shall give a sufficient bond to the municipality for its faithful performance.

Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, a municipality may enter into a guaranteed energy savings contract with a qualified provider to significantly reduce energy or operating costs.

Before entering into a contract under this subdivision, the municipality shall provide published notice of the meeting in which it proposes to award the contract, the names of the parties to the proposed contract, and the contract's purpose.

Before installation of equipment, modification, or remodeling, the qualified provider shall first issue a report, summarizing estimates of all costs of installations, modifications, or remodeling, including costs of design, engineering, installation, maintenance, repairs, or debt service, and estimates of the amounts by which energy or operating costs will be reduced.

A guaranteed energy savings contract that includes a written guarantee that savings will meet or exceed the cost of energy conservation measures is not subject to competitive bidding requirements of section 471.345 or other law or city charter. The contract is not subject to section 123B.52.

A municipality may enter into a guaranteed energy savings contract with a qualified provider if, after review of the report, it finds that the amount it would spend on the energy conservation measures recommended in the report is not likely to exceed the amount to be saved in energy and operation costs over 15 years from the date of installation if the recommendations in the report were followed, and the qualified provider provides a written guarantee that the energy or operating cost savings will meet or exceed the costs of the system. The guaranteed energy savings contract may provide for payments over a period of time, not to exceed 15 years.

A municipality may enter into an installment payment contract for the purchase and installation of energy conservation measures. The contract must provide for payments of not less than 1/15 of the price to be paid within two years from the date of the first operation, and the remaining costs to be paid monthly, not to exceed a 15-year term from the date of the first operation.

A municipality entering into a guaranteed energy savings contract shall provide a copy of the contract and the report from the qualified provider to the commissioner of commerce within 30 days of the effective date of the contract.

Guaranteed energy savings contracts may extend beyond the fiscal year in which they become effective. The municipality shall include in its annual appropriations measure for each later fiscal year any amounts payable under guaranteed energy savings contracts during the year. Failure of a municipality to make such an appropriation does not affect the validity of the guaranteed energy savings contract or the municipality's obligations under the contracts.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 504B.161, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **Requirements.** (a) In every lease or license of residential premises, the landlord or licensor covenants:

(1) that the premises and all common areas are fit for the use intended by the parties;

(2) to keep the premises in reasonable repair during the term of the lease or license, except when the disrepair has been caused by the willful, malicious, or irresponsible conduct of the tenant or licensee or a person under the direction or control of the tenant or licensee; ~~and~~

(3) to make the premises reasonably energy efficient by installing weatherstripping, caulking, storm windows, and storm doors when any such measure will result in energy procurement cost savings, based on current and projected average residential energy costs in Minnesota, that will exceed the cost of implementing that measure, including interest, amortized over the ten-year period following the incurring of the cost; and

~~(4) to maintain the premises in compliance with the applicable health and safety laws of the state, including the weatherstripping, caulking, storm window, and storm door energy efficiency standards for renter occupied residences prescribed by section 216C.27, subdivisions 1 and 3, and of the local units of government where the premises are located during the term of the lease or license, except when violation of the health and safety laws has been caused by the willful, malicious, or irresponsible conduct of the tenant or licensee or a person under the direction or control of the tenant or licensee.~~

(b) The parties to a lease or license of residential premises may not waive or modify the covenants imposed by this section.

Sec. 5. **REPEALER.**

Minnesota Statutes 2006, sections 216B.165; 216C.27; and 216C.30, subdivision 5, and Minnesota Rules, parts 7635.0100; 7635.0110; 7635.0120; 7635.0130; 7635.0140; 7635.0150; 7635.0160; 7635.0170; 7635.0180; 7635.0200; 7635.0210; 7635.0220; 7635.0230; 7635.0240; 7635.0250; 7635.0260; 7635.0300; 7635.0310; 7635.0320; 7635.0330; 7635.0340; 7635.0400; 7635.0410; 7635.0420; 7635.0500; 7635.0510; 7635.0520; 7635.0530; 7635.0600; 7635.0610; 7635.0620; 7635.0630; 7635.0640; 7635.1000; 7635.1010; 7635.1020; 7635.1030; 7655.0100; 7655.0120; 7655.0200; 7655.0210; 7655.0220; 7655.0230; 7655.0240; 7655.0250; 7655.0260; 7655.0270; 7655.0280; 7655.0290; 7655.0300; 7655.0310; 7655.0320; 7655.0330; 7655.0400; 7655.0410; and 7655.0420, are repealed, effective July 1, 2007.

Sec. 6. **EFFECTIVE DATE.**

This article is effective July 1, 2007.

## ARTICLE 4

## COMMUNITY-BASED ENERGY DEVELOPMENT

Section 1. **CITATION.**

This article may be cited as the Community-Based Energy Development Act of 2007.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 216B.1612, is amended to read:

**216B.1612 COMMUNITY-BASED ENERGY DEVELOPMENT; TARIFF.**

Subdivision 1. **Tariff establishment.** A tariff shall be established to optimize local, regional, and state benefits from ~~wind~~ renewable energy development and to facilitate widespread development of community-based ~~wind~~ renewable energy projects throughout Minnesota.

Subd. 2. **Definitions.** (a) The terms used in this section have the meanings given them in this subdivision.

(b) "C-BED tariff" or "tariff" means a community-based energy development tariff.

(c) "Qualifying owner" means:

(1) a Minnesota resident;

(2) a limited liability company that is organized under ~~the laws of this state~~ chapter 322B and that is made up of members who are Minnesota residents;

(3) a Minnesota nonprofit organization organized under chapter 317A;

(4) a Minnesota cooperative association organized under chapter 308A or 308B, ~~other than including~~ including a rural electric cooperative association or a generation and transmission cooperative on behalf of and at the request of a member distribution utility;

(5) a Minnesota political subdivision or local government ~~other than including, but not limited to,~~ including, but not limited to, a municipal electric utility or a municipal power agency on behalf of and at the request of a member distribution utility, ~~including, but not limited to,~~ a county, statutory or home rule charter city, town, school district, or public or private higher education institution or any other local or regional governmental organization such as a board, commission, or association; or

(6) a tribal council.

(d) "Net present value rate" means a rate equal to the net present value of the nominal payments to a project divided by the total expected energy production of the project over the life of its power purchase agreement.

(e) "Standard reliability criteria" means:

(1) can be safely integrated into and operated within the utility's grid without causing any adverse or unsafe consequences; and

(2) is consistent with the utility's resource needs as identified in its most recent resource plan submitted under section 216B.2422.

(f) "Renewable" means a technology listed in section 216B.1691, subdivision 1, paragraph (a).

(g) "Community-based energy project" or "C-BED project" means a new ~~wind~~ renewable energy project that:

~~(1) has no single qualifying owner owning more than 15 percent of a C-BED project that consists of more than two turbines; or~~

~~(2) for C-BED projects of one or two turbines, is owned entirely by one or more qualifying owners, with at least 51 percent of the total financial benefits over the life of the project flowing to qualifying owners; and~~

(1) provides that at least 51 percent of the total payments made as a direct result of a power purchase agreement or similar agreement with a utility accrue to:

(i) qualifying owners, in the form of net cash payments under the power purchase agreement that amount to no less than 35 percent made over the term of the power purchase agreement;

(ii) owners of land upon which a project is sited, in the form of easement or lease payments;

(iii) local units of government, in the form of taxes paid under section 272.029; and

(iv) lenders chartered under section 46.044, in the form of interest paid on C-BED project debt financed by a lender;

(2) allows, if the project is a wind energy project consisting of more than two turbines, no single qualifying owner to own more than 15 percent of the project;

(3) allows, if the project is a wind energy project, a public entity listed in paragraph (b), clause (5), except for a municipal utility, to own more than 15 percent of the project; and

~~(3)~~ (4) has a resolution of support adopted by the county board of each county in which the project is to be located, or in the case of a project located within the boundaries of a reservation, the tribal council for that reservation.

Subd. 3. **Tariff rate.** (a) The tariff described in subdivision 4 must have a rate schedule that allows for a ~~rate up to a 2.7 cents per kilowatt hour~~ net present value rate over the 20-year life of the power purchase agreement. The tariff must provide for a rate that is higher in the first ten years of the power purchase agreement than in the last ten years. The discount rate required to calculate the net present value must be the utility's normal discount rate used for its other business purposes.

(b) The commission shall consider mechanisms to encourage the aggregation of C-BED projects.

(c) The commission shall require that qualifying and nonqualifying owners provide sufficient security to secure performance under the power purchase agreement, and shall prohibit the transfer of the C-BED project to a nonqualifying owner during the initial 20 years of the contract.

Subd. 4. **Utilities to offer tariff.** By December 1, ~~2005~~ 2007, each public utility providing electric service at retail shall file for commission approval a community-based energy development tariff consistent with subdivision 3. Within 90 days of the first commission approval order under this subdivision, each municipal power agency and generation and transmission cooperative electric association shall adopt a community-based energy development tariff as consistent as possible with subdivision 3.

Subd. 5. **Priority for C-BED projects.** (a) A utility subject to section 216B.1691 that needs to construct new generation, or purchase the output from new generation, as part of its plan to satisfy its good faith objective and standard under that section ~~should~~ must take reasonable steps to determine if one or more C-BED projects are available that meet the utility's cost and reliability requirements, applying standard reliability criteria, to fulfill some or all of the identified need at minimal impact to customer rates.

Nothing in this section shall be construed to obligate a utility to enter into a power purchase agreement under a C-BED tariff developed under this section. A utility whose renewable energy plan has been approved by the commission under section 216B.1645, subdivision 2a, must negotiate in good faith with developers of C-BED projects that meet the specifications of this paragraph and whose aggregated capacity is equal to the capacity of C-BED projects identified in the plan from which the utility intends to purchase energy.

(b) Each utility shall include in its resource plan submitted under section 216B.2422 a description of its efforts to purchase energy from C-BED projects, including a list of the projects under contract and the amount of C-BED energy purchased.

(c) The commission shall consider the efforts and activities of a utility to purchase energy from C-BED projects when evaluating its good faith effort towards meeting the renewable energy objective under section 216B.1691.

(d) A municipal power agency or generation and transmission cooperative shall, when issuing a request for proposals for C-BED projects to satisfy its standard obligation under section 216B.1691, provide notice to its member distribution utilities that they may propose, in partnership with other qualifying owners, a C-BED project for the consideration of the municipal power agency or generation and transmission cooperative.

Subd. 6. **Property owner participation.** To the extent feasible, a developer of a C-BED project must provide, in writing, an opportunity to invest in the C-BED project to each property owner on whose property a high-voltage transmission line is constructed that will transmit the energy generated by the C-BED project to market. This subdivision applies if the property is located and the owner resides in the county where the C-BED project is located.

Subd. 7. **Other C-BED tariff issues.** (a) A community-based project developer and a utility shall negotiate the rate and power purchase agreement terms consistent with the tariff established under subdivision 4.

(b) At the discretion of the developer, a community-based project developer and a utility may negotiate a power purchase agreement with terms different from the tariff established under subdivision 4.

(c) A qualifying owner, or any combination of qualifying owners, may develop a joint venture project with a nonqualifying ~~wind~~ renewable energy project developer. However, the terms of the C-BED tariff may only apply to the portion of the energy production of the total project that is directly proportional to the equity share of the project owned by the qualifying owners.

(d) A project that is operating under a power purchase agreement under a C-BED tariff is not eligible for net energy billing under section 216B.164, subdivision 3, or for production incentives under section 216C.41.

(e) A public utility must receive commission approval of a power purchase agreement for a C-BED tariffed project. The commission shall provide the utility's ratepayers an opportunity to address the reasonableness of the proposed power purchase agreement. Unless a party objects to a contract within 30 days of submission of the contract to the commission the contract is deemed approved.



Subd. 8. **Community energy partnerships.** A utility providing electric service to retail or wholesale customers in Minnesota and an independent power producer may participate, and are encouraged to participate, in a community-based energy project, as owner, equity partner, or provider of technical or financial assistance, subject to the limits specified in this section.

Subd. 9. **C-BED advisory determination.** A developer of a proposed project may request the commissioner of commerce to issue an advisory determination as to whether the proposed project qualifies as a C-BED project under this section. The request must be made on a form and under a procedure approved by the commissioner. A positive advisory determination of the commissioner under this subdivision establishes a rebuttable presumption that the project qualifies as a C-BED project.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 216B.1645, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 2a. **Utility ownership of renewable resources.** (a) A utility may construct, own, and operate generation facilities used to satisfy the requirements of section 216B.1691, notwithstanding any competitive resource acquisition process established under section 216B.2422, subdivision 5.

(b) In lieu of any competitive resource acquisition process, a utility that owns a nuclear generation facility and intends to construct, own, or operate facilities under this section shall file with the commission on or before March 1, 2008, a renewable energy plan setting forth the manner in which the utility proposes to meet the requirements of section 216B.1691, including a proposed schedule for purchasing renewable energy from C-BED and non-C-BED projects, a proposed schedule of acquisition and construction of generation facilities and their expected in-service dates, and proposed transmission resources associated with the facilities, including a proposed construction schedule and expected in-service date for any transmission sources that need to be constructed to deliver the electricity generated by the facilities. The plan must also contain alternative means of providing the energy generated by the facilities described in the plan, and must compare the costs of delivering energy from these alternative means and from the facilities identified in the plan. The utility shall update the plan as necessary in its filing under section 216B.2422.

(c) The commission shall approve the plan unless it determines, after public hearing and comment, that the plan:

(1) imposes excessive costs on ratepayers;

(2) does not reasonably allocate resources among utility-owned generation facilities, energy purchased from C-BED and non-C-BED projects, and generation facilities selected in a competitive selection process under section 216B.2422, subdivision 5; or

(3) does not maximize benefits to Minnesota citizens, as required by section 216B.1691, subdivision 9.

Nothing in this section prohibits a utility from seeking and securing approval from the commission to implement projects prior to submission of the plan required under this section.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 216B.1645, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 2b. **Cost recovery for owned renewable facilities.** (a) A utility may petition the commission to approve a rate schedule that provides for the automatic adjustment of charges to recover prudently incurred investments, expenses, or costs associated with facilities constructed, owned, or operated by a utility to satisfy the requirements of section 216B.1691, provided those facilities were previously approved by the commission under section 216B.2422 or 216B.243. The commission may approve, or approve as modified, a rate schedule that:

(1) allows a utility to recover directly from customers on a timely basis the costs of qualifying renewable energy projects, including:

(i) return on investment;

(ii) depreciation;

(iii) ongoing operation and maintenance costs;

(iv) taxes; and

(v) costs of transmission and other ancillary expenses directly allocable to transmitting electricity generated from a project meeting the specifications of this paragraph;

(2) provides a current return on construction work in progress, provided that recovery of these costs from Minnesota ratepayers is not sought through any other mechanism;

(3) allows recovery of other expenses incurred that are directly related to a renewable energy project, provided that the utility demonstrates to the commission's satisfaction that the expenses improve project economics, ensure project implementation, or facilitate coordination with the development of transmission necessary to transport energy produced by the project to market;

(4) allocates recoverable costs appropriately between wholesale and retail customers;

(5) terminates recovery when costs have been fully recovered or have otherwise been reflected in a utility's rates.

(b) A petition filed under this subdivision must include:

(1) a description of the facilities for which costs are to be recovered;

(2) an implementation schedule for the facilities;

(3) the utility's costs for the facilities;

(4) a description of the utility's efforts to ensure that costs of the facilities are reasonable and were prudently incurred; and

(5) a description of the benefits of the project in promoting the development of renewable energy in a manner consistent with this chapter.

#### Sec. 5. **[216B.1681] CURTAILMENT PAYMENTS.**

The commission shall, by September 1, 2007, initiate a review of curtailment payments for wind energy projects to assess whether utilities are unduly discriminating among project ownership structures in regard to the contractual availability of curtailment payments.

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 216B.169, is amended to read:

**216B.169 RENEWABLE AND HIGH EFFICIENCY ENERGY RATE OPTIONS COMMUNITY-BASED ENERGY DEVELOPMENT GREEN PRICING OPTION.**

Subdivision 1. **Definitions.** For the purposes of this section, the following terms have the meanings given them.

(a) "Utility" means a public utility, municipal utility, or cooperative electric association providing electric service at retail to Minnesota consumers.

(b) ~~"Renewable energy" has the meaning given in section 216B.2422, subdivision 1, paragraph (c)~~ "Eligible energy technology" has the meaning given in section 216B.1691, subdivision 1.

(c) ~~"High efficiency, low emissions, distributed generation" means a distributed generation facility of no more than ten megawatts of interconnected capacity that is certified by the commissioner under subdivision 3 as a high efficiency, low emissions facility~~ "Community-based energy development project" or "C-BED project" has the meaning given in section 216B.1612, subdivision 2, paragraph (g).

Subd. 2. ~~Renewable and high efficiency energy rate options~~ **C-BED green pricing programs.** (a) Each utility shall offer its customers, and shall advertise the offer at least ~~annually~~ quarterly, one or more options that allow a customer to determine that a certain amount of the electricity generated or purchased on behalf of the customer is ~~renewable energy or energy generated by high efficiency, low emissions, distributed generation such as fuel cells and microturbines fueled by a renewable fuel~~ a community-based energy development project or is provided through the purchase of renewable energy credits from a C-BED project.

(b) Each public utility shall file an implementation plan within 90 days of July 1, ~~2004~~ 2007, to implement paragraph (a).

(c) Rates charged to customers must be calculated using the utility's cost of acquiring the energy for the customer and must:

(1) reflect the difference between the cost of generating or purchasing the ~~renewable~~ C-BED energy or credits and the cost of generating or purchasing the same amount of ~~nonrenewable~~ energy or credits from non-C-BED sources; and

(2) be distributed on a per kilowatt-hour basis among all customers who choose to participate in the program.

(d) Implementation of these rate options may reflect a reasonable amount of lead time necessary to arrange acquisition of the energy. The utility ~~may~~ must acquire the energy demanded by customers, in whole or in part, through procuring or generating ~~the renewable C-BED energy directly, or through the purchase of credits from a provider that has received certification of eligible power supply pursuant to subdivision 3 issued under the program established by the commission under section 216B.1691, subdivision 4, if available.~~ If a utility is not able to arrange an adequate supply of renewable or high efficiency C-BED energy or credits to meet its customers' demand under this section, the utility must file a report with the commission detailing its efforts and reasons for its failure.

Subd. 3. ~~Certification and tradeable credits.~~ (a) The commissioner shall certify a power supply or supplies as eligible to satisfy customer requirements under this section upon finding:

(1) the power supply ~~is renewable energy or energy generated by high efficiency, low emissions, distributed generation~~ meets the requirements of section 216B.1612; and

(2) the sales arrangements of energy from the supplies are such that the power supply is only sold once to retail consumers.

~~(b) To facilitate compliance with this section, the commission may, by order, establish a program for tradeable credits for eligible power supplies.~~

Subd. 4. **C-BED logo.** (a) The commissioner of commerce shall design or contract for the design of a logo that qualifying entities may affix to their products and to advertising for their products that contains the words "100% Minnesota Renewable Energy." The logo may also contain a standardized pictorial representation or design.

(b) The commissioner of commerce shall certify in writing that an entity is authorized to use the logo if the commissioner determines that all the electricity consumed by an applicant is purchased directly, or by purchasing credits from a C-BED project. The commissioner of commerce shall develop forms and procedures to govern the application and certification processes and the use of the logo by an entity that receives certification. No person may use the logo without certification from the commissioner. For the purposes of this subdivision, "qualifying entity" means a person or entity that has received certification from the commissioner of commerce granting the entity authority to use the C-BED logo in the manner prescribed by the commissioner.

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 216C.052, is amended to read:

#### **216C.052 RELIABILITY ADMINISTRATOR.**

Subdivision 1. **Responsibilities.** (a) There is established the position of reliability administrator in the ~~Public Utilities Commission~~ Department of Commerce. The administrator shall act as a source of independent expertise and a technical advisor to the commissioner, the commission and the public on issues related to the reliability of the electric system. In conducting its work, the administrator shall provide assistance to the ~~commission~~ commissioner in administering and implementing the ~~commission's~~ department's duties under sections 216B.1612, 216B.1691, 216B.2422, 216B.2425, and 216B.243; chapters 216E, 216F, and 216G; and rules associated with those provisions. ~~Subject to resource constraints, the reliability administrator may also and shall also:~~

(1) model and monitor the use and operation of the energy infrastructure in the state, including generation facilities, transmission lines, natural gas pipelines, and other energy infrastructure;

(2) develop and present to the commission and parties technical analyses of proposed infrastructure projects, and provide technical advice to the commission;

(3) present independent, factual, expert, and technical information on infrastructure proposals and reliability issues at public meetings hosted by the task force, the Environmental Quality Board, the department, or the commission.

(b) Upon request and subject to resource constraints, the administrator shall provide technical assistance regarding matters unrelated to applications for infrastructure improvements to the task force, the department, or the commission.

(c) The administrator may not advocate for any particular outcome in a commission proceeding, but may give technical advice to the commission as to the impact on the reliability of the energy system of a particular project or projects.

Subd. 2. **Administrative issues.** (a) The ~~commission~~ commissioner may select the administrator ~~who shall serve for a four year term~~. The administrator must demonstrate technical training, expertise, or experience in energy reliability issues, and may not have been a party or a participant in a commission energy proceeding for at least one

year prior to selection by the ~~commissioner~~ commissioner. The ~~commissioner~~ commissioner shall oversee and direct the work of the administrator, annually review the expenses of the administrator, and annually approve the budget of the administrator. ~~Pursuant to commission approval,~~ The administrator may hire staff and may contract for technical expertise in performing duties when existing state resources are required for other state responsibilities or when special expertise is required. The salary of the administrator is governed by section 15A.0815, subdivision 2.

(b) Costs relating to a specific proceeding, analysis, or project are not general administrative costs. For purposes of this section, "energy utility" means public utilities, generation and transmission cooperative electric associations, and municipal power agencies providing natural gas or electric service in the state.

(c) The ~~commission~~ Department of Commerce shall pay:

(1) the general administrative costs of the administrator, not to exceed \$1,000,000 in a fiscal year, and shall assess energy utilities for those administrative costs. These costs must be consistent with the budget approved by the ~~commissioner~~ commissioner under paragraph (a). The ~~commission department~~ shall apportion the costs among all energy utilities in proportion to their respective gross operating revenues from sales of gas or electric service within the state during the last calendar year, and shall then render a bill to each utility on a regular basis; and

(2) costs relating to a specific proceeding analysis or project and shall render a bill to the specific energy utility or utilities participating in the proceeding, analysis, or project directly, either at the conclusion of a particular proceeding, analysis, or project, or from time to time during the course of the proceeding, analysis, or project.

(d) For purposes of administrative efficiency, the ~~commission department~~ shall assess energy utilities and issue bills in accordance with the billing and assessment procedures provided in section 216B.62, to the extent that these procedures do not conflict with this subdivision. The amount of the bills rendered by the ~~commission department~~ under paragraph (c) must be paid by the energy utility into an account in the special revenue fund in the state treasury within 30 days from the date of billing and is appropriated to the ~~commission department~~ for the purposes provided in this section. The commission shall approve or approve as modified a rate schedule providing for the automatic adjustment of charges to recover amounts paid by utilities under this section. All amounts assessed under this section are in addition to amounts appropriated to the commission and the department by other law.

Subd. 3. **Assessment and appropriation.** In addition to the amount noted in subdivision 2, the ~~commissioner~~ commissioner may assess utilities, using the mechanism specified in that subdivision, up to an additional \$500,000 annually through June 30, 2008. The amounts assessed under this subdivision are appropriated to the ~~commissioner~~ commissioner, and some or all of the amounts assessed may be transferred to the commissioner of administration, for the purposes specified in section 16B.325 and Laws 2001, chapter 212, article 1, section 3, as needed to implement those sections.

Subd. 4. **Expiration.** Subdivisions 1 and 2 expire June 30, ~~2007~~ 2012. Subdivision 3 expires June 30, 2008.

Sec. 8. **[216F.011] SIZE DETERMINATION.**

(a) The total size of a combination of wind energy conversion systems for the purpose of determining jurisdictional siting authority under sections 216F.01 to 216F.07 must be determined according to this section. The nameplate capacity of one wind energy conversion system must be combined with the nameplate capacity of any other wind energy conversion system that:

(1) is located within five miles of the wind energy conversion system;

(2) is constructed within the same 12-month period as the wind energy conversion system; and

(3) exhibits characteristics of being a single development, including but not limited to ownership structure, an umbrella sales arrangement, shared interconnection, revenue sharing arrangements, and common debt or equity financing.

(b) The commissioner shall prepare and make available the necessary forms and guidance for project developers to make a request for determination. Upon written request of a project developer, the commissioner of commerce shall provide a written determination under this section within 30 days of receipt of the request and information necessary to make a determination. In the case of a dispute, the chair of the Public Utilities Commission shall determine the total size of the system and shall draw all reasonable inferences in favor of combining the systems.

(c) An application to a county for a permit for a wind energy conversion system is not complete without a jurisdictional determination made under this section.

Sec. 9. **[216F.08] PERMIT AUTHORITY; ASSUMPTION BY COUNTIES.**

Subdivision 1. **Definition.** For the purposes of this subdivision, the term "processing" means:

(1) the distribution to applicants of application and determination forms provided by the commission;

(2) the receipt and examination of completed application forms, and the certification, in writing, to the commission either that the LWECS for which a permit was issued by the county will comply with applicable rules and standards or, if the facility will not comply, the respects in which a variance is required for the issuance of a permit; and

(3) rendering to applicants, upon request, assistance for the proper completion of an application.

Subd. 2. **Counties; processing applications for LWECS site permits.** (a) Any Minnesota county board may, by resolution and upon written notice to the Public Utilities Commission, assume responsibility for processing applications for permits required under this chapter for LWECS with a combined nameplate capacity of less than 25,000 kilowatts. The responsibility for permit application processing, if assumed by a county, may be delegated by the county board to an appropriate county officer or employee. Processing by a county must be done in accordance with procedures and processes established under chapter 394.

(b) A county board that exercises its option under paragraph (a) and assumes responsibility for processing applications for permits for LWECS within its borders is responsible for issuing, denying, modifying, imposing conditions upon, or revoking permits under this section or rules adopted pursuant to it. The action of the county board with regard to a permit application is final, subject to appeal as provided in section 394.27.

(c) In adopting and enforcing rules or standards under this subdivision, the commission shall cooperate closely with counties and other governmental agencies.

(d) The commission shall work with counties and wind developers to notify and educate stakeholders with regard to rules or standards under this section at the time the rules or standards are being developed and adopted and at least every two years thereafter.

(e) The commission shall, by order, establish general permit standards governing site permits for LWECS under this section. These general permit standards must apply both to permits issued by counties and to permits issued by the commission directly for LWECS with a combined nameplate capacity of less than 25,000 kilowatts. The order must contain minimum standards necessary to ensure the protection of human health and safety and wind resources on adjacent land and must be consistent with the general provisions of wind permits issued by the commission in the five years prior to enactment of this provision.

(f) The commission and the commissioner of commerce shall provide technical assistance to a county with respect to the processing of LWECS site permit applications by the county.

(g) A county may adopt by ordinance standards for LWECS that are more stringent than standards in commission rules or in the commission's permit standards. The commission, in considering a permit for LWECS in a county that has adopted more stringent standards, shall incorporate and apply those more stringent standards, unless the commission finds there is good cause not to do so.

Sec. 10. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 500.30, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **Like any conveyance.** Any property owner may grant a solar or wind easement in the same manner and with the same effect as a conveyance of an interest in real property. The easements shall be created in writing and shall be filed, duly recorded, and indexed in the office of the recorder of the county in which the easement is granted. No duly recorded easement shall be unenforceable on account of lack of privity of estate or privity of contract; such easements shall run with the land or lands benefited and burdened and shall constitute a perpetual easement, except that an easement may terminate upon the conditions stated therein or pursuant to the provisions of section 500.20. A wind easement or lease of wind rights shall also terminate after five years from the date the easement is created or lease is entered into, if a wind energy project on the property to which the easement or lease applies does not begin commercial operation within the five-year period.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment, and applies to wind easements created and wind rights leases entered into on and after the effective date of this section.

Sec. 11. **STATEWIDE STUDY OF DISPERSED GENERATION POTENTIAL.**

Subdivision 1. **Definition.** "Dispersed generation" means an electric generation project with a generating capacity between ten and 40 megawatts that utilizes an eligible energy technology, as defined in Minnesota Statutes, section 216B.1691, subdivision 1, paragraph (a).

Subd. 2. **Study participants.** Each electric utility subject to Minnesota Statutes, section 216B.1691, must participate collaboratively in conducting a two-phase study of the potential for dispersed generation projects that can be developed in Minnesota.

Subd. 3. **First phase study content; report.** In the first phase of the study, participants must analyze the impacts of the addition of a total of 600 megawatts of new dispersed generation projects distributed among the following Minnesota electric transmission planning zones: the Northeast zone, the Northwest zone, the Southeast zone, the Southwest zone, and the West-Central zone. Study participants must use a generally accepted 2010 year transmission system model including all transmission facilities expected to be operating in 2010. The study must take into consideration regional projected load growth, planned changes in the bulk transmission network, and the long-range transmission conceptual plan being developed under Laws 2007, chapter 3, section 2. In determining locations for the installation of dispersed generation projects that consist of wind energy conversion systems, the study should consider, at a minimum, wind resource availability, existing and contracted wind projects, and current dispersed generation projects in the Midwest Independent System Operator interconnection queue. The study must analyze the impacts of individual projects and all projects in aggregate on the transmission system, and identify specific modifications to the transmission system necessary to remedy any problems caused by the installation of dispersed generation projects, including cost estimates for the modifications. The study must analyze the additional dispersed generation projects connected at the lowest voltage level transmission that exists in the vicinity of the projected generation sites. A preliminary analysis to identify transmission system problems must be conducted with the projects installed at initially selected locations. The technical review committee may, after reviewing the locations selected for installation, recommend moving the installation sites to new locations to reduce undesirable transmission system impacts. The commissioner of commerce must submit a report containing the findings and recommendations of the first phase of the study to the commission no later than June 15, 2008.

Subd. 4. **Second phase study content; report.** In the second phase of the study, participants must analyze the impacts of an additional total of 600 megawatts of dispersed generation projects installed among the five transmission planning zones, or a higher total capacity amount if agreed to by both the utilities and the technical review committee. The utilities must employ an analysis method similar to that used in the first phase of the study, and must use the most recent information available, including information developed in the first phase. The second phase of the study must use a generally accepted 2013 year transmission system model including all transmission facilities that are expected to be in service at that time. The commissioner of commerce must submit a report containing the findings and recommendations of the second phase of the study to the commission no later than September 15, 2009.

Subd. 5. **Technical review committee.** Prior to the start of the first phase of the study, the commissioner of commerce shall appoint a technical review committee consisting of between ten and 15 individuals with experience and expertise in electric transmission system engineering, renewable energy generation technology, and dispersed generation project development, including representatives from the federal Department of Energy, the Midwest Independent System Operator, and stakeholder interests. The technical review committee must oversee both phases of the study, and must:

(1) make recommendations to the utilities regarding the proposed methods and assumptions to be used in the technical study;

(2) in conjunction with the appropriate utilities, hold public meetings on each phase of the study in each electricity transmission planning zone prior to the beginning of each phase of study, after the impact analysis is completed, and when a draft final report is available; and

(3) review the initial and final drafts of the study and make recommendations for improvement, including with respect to problems associated with the interconnections among utility systems that may be amenable to solution through cooperation between the utilities in each zone. During each phase of the study, the technical review committee may recommend that the installation of dispersed generation projects be moved to new locations that cause fewer undesirable transmission system impacts.

#### **Sec. 12. TRANSFERRING RELIABILITY ADMINISTRATOR RESPONSIBILITIES.**

All responsibilities, as defined in Minnesota Statutes, section 15.039, subdivision 1, held by the Public Utilities Commission relating to the reliability administrator under Minnesota Statutes, section 216C.052, are transferred to the Minnesota Department of Commerce under Minnesota Statutes, section 15.039.

#### **Sec. 13. TRANSMISSION AUTHORITY AND INTERCONNECTION EVALUATIONS.**

The reliability administrator shall, in consultation with interested stakeholders:

(1) review the structures, powers, and duties for constructing, owning, maintaining, and operating transmission facilities of state transmission authorities established in Kansas, North Dakota, South Dakota, and Wyoming, and evaluate whether the existence of a similar organization in Minnesota would have the potential to increase the reliability and efficiency of the electrical grid in the state; hasten the development of needed transmission lines; accelerate the development of renewable energy projects, especially in rural areas of the state; and reduce delivered energy costs to Minnesota ratepayers; and

(2) assess the potential for and barriers to interconnecting dispersed generation projects to locations on the electric grid where a generator interconnection would not be subject to the interconnection rules of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission or the Midwest Independent System Operator.



No technical or engineering analyses are necessary in order to complete these duties. The reliability administrator must report its findings and any recommendations to the chairs of the senate and house of representatives committees with jurisdiction over energy policy by February 15, 2008.

Sec. 14. **REPEALER.**

Laws 2007, chapter 3, section 3, is repealed.

ARTICLE 5

GLOBAL WARMING MITIGATION

Section 1. **[216H.001] FINDINGS; CITATION.**

(a) The legislature finds that the state has a vital interest in preventing or mitigating harms associated with global warming and in reducing Minnesota's greenhouse gas emissions. The legislature recognizes that substantial reductions in emissions of greenhouse gases are necessary to avoid dangerous climate changes in the future. The legislature finds that taking steps to reduce Minnesota's greenhouse gas emissions today and planning for long-term reductions will reduce the need for more disruptive emission reductions later, and that to achieve the purposes of this act, all emissions associated with electricity generated or consumed within the state must be subject to the state's emissions-reduction goals. The legislature further finds that Minnesota's economy will benefit by showing leadership in the transition away from climate-damaging technologies and toward renewable power, biofuels, and energy efficiency. The legislature recognizes that achieving these ends will only occur by close cooperation with other states and may require the state to enter into binding agreements with other units of government.

(b) This chapter may be referred to as the Global Warming Mitigation Act of 2007.

Sec. 2. **[216H.01] DEFINITIONS.**

Subdivision 1. **Scope.** For the purposes of this chapter, the terms defined in this section have the meanings given them.

Subd. 2. **Allowance.** "Allowance" means limited authorization from a state regulatory agency to emit up to one ton of carbon dioxide or carbon dioxide equivalent into the atmosphere. This limited authorization does not constitute a property right.

Subd. 3. **Cap and trade system.** "Cap and trade system" means a regulatory system that imposes a limit on the aggregate air pollutant emissions of a group of sources, requires those subject to the cap to own an allowance for each ton of the air pollutant emitted, and allows for market-based trading of those allowances.

Subd. 4. **Carbon dioxide equivalent.** "Carbon dioxide equivalent" means the quantity of a given greenhouse gas multiplied by its global warming potential.

Subd. 5. **Global warming potential.** "Global warming potential" means a measure of the radiative efficiency or heat-absorbing ability of a particular gas relative to that of carbon dioxide after taking into account the decay rate of each gas, that is, the amount removed from the atmosphere over a given number of years, relative to that of carbon dioxide.

Subd. 6. **Greenhouse gas emissions source.** "Greenhouse gas emissions source" means any anthropogenic physical unit or process that releases greenhouse gases into the atmosphere.

Subd. 7. **Greenhouse gases.** "Greenhouse gases" include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons, and sulfur hexafluoride or any other chemical that is determined by the Pollution Control Agency to contribute comparably to global climate change and that is emitted by anthropogenic sources.

Subd. 8. **New large energy facility.** "New large energy facility" means a large energy facility, as defined in section 216B.2421, subdivision 2, clauses (1) to (8), that is not in operation as of January 1, 2007, but does not include a facility that (1) uses natural gas as a primary fuel, (2) is designed to provide peaking, emergency backup, or contingency services, (3) uses a simple cycle turbine technology, (4) is capable of achieving full load operations within 45 minutes of startup, and (5) has received a certificate of need under section 216B.243.

Subd. 9. **Person.** "Person" has the meaning given in section 216E.01.

Subd. 10. **Statewide greenhouse gas emissions.** "Statewide greenhouse gas emissions" means the total annual emissions of greenhouse gases within the state and all emissions of greenhouse gases from the generation of electricity imported from outside the state and consumed in Minnesota. Emissions associated with transmission and distribution line losses are included in this definition. Statewide emissions are expressed in tons of carbon dioxide equivalent. Carbon dioxide that is injected into geological formations to prevent its release to the atmosphere in compliance with applicable laws, and emissions associated with the combustion of fuels other than coal, petroleum, and natural gas are not counted as contributing to statewide greenhouse gas emissions.

Subd. 11. **Statewide power sector carbon dioxide emissions.** "Statewide power sector carbon dioxide emissions" means the total annual emissions of carbon dioxide from the generation of electricity within the state and all emissions of carbon dioxide from the generation of electricity imported from outside the state and consumed in Minnesota. Emissions associated with transmission and distribution line losses are included in this definition. Carbon dioxide that is injected into geological formations to prevent its release to the atmosphere in compliance with applicable laws, and emissions associated with the combustion of fuels other than coal, petroleum, and natural gas are not counted as contributing to statewide power sector carbon dioxide emissions.

### Sec. 3. **[216H.02] GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS-REDUCTION GOALS.**

It is the state's goal to reduce statewide greenhouse gas emissions to a level at least 15 percent below 2005 emission levels by 2015, to a level at least 30 percent below 2005 emission levels by 2025, and to a level at least 80 percent below 2005 emission levels by 2050.

### Sec. 4. **[216H.04] GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS-REDUCTION PLAN.**

Subdivision 1. **Plan for achieving reductions.** (a) By February 1, 2008, the commissioners of the Pollution Control Agency and the Department of Commerce shall submit a plan to the chairs of the senate and house of representatives committees with jurisdiction over energy and environmental policy that contains recommendations on how best to achieve the statewide greenhouse gas emissions-reduction goals established under section 216H.02. The plan must also identify how best to reduce statewide greenhouse gas emissions to a level at least 45 percent below 2005 levels by 2025. The plan must identify, develop, and integrate a full range of greenhouse gas emissions-reduction activities across all economic sectors, regions, and energy uses in the state, and estimate the costs and benefits of each action. The plan must:

(1) estimate statewide greenhouse gas emissions for 2005 and make projections of statewide greenhouse gas emissions for 2015, 2025, and 2050;

(2) estimate the statewide greenhouse gas emissions reductions anticipated from implementation of existing state policies;

(3) include a cap and trade system as described in subdivision 3;

(4) recommend additional policies to achieve statewide greenhouse gas emissions-reduction goals;

(5) include provisions that will ensure that existing policies are evaluated, and that at least every five years any policy changes needed to achieve the statewide greenhouse gas emissions-reduction goals are developed and recommended for legislative action;

(6) recommend a system to require the reporting of statewide greenhouse gas emissions, identifying which facilities must report, how emission estimates should be made, and other reporting requirements that will ensure the collection of emissions information needed to reliably document statewide greenhouse gas emission levels and implement the plan; and

(7) evaluate the option of exempting a project from the prohibitions contained in section 216H.05, subdivision 1, if the project contributes a specified fee per ton of carbon dioxide emissions emitted annually by the project, the proceeds of which would be used to fund permanent, quantifiable, verifiable, and enforceable reductions in greenhouse gas emissions that would not otherwise have occurred.

(b) In formulating the plan, the commissioners shall consider the broadest possible set of mechanisms to reduce emissions, including, but not limited to, expanding the electric sector cap and trade system established under subdivision 3 to include emissions sources other than electricity generation and greenhouse gases other than carbon dioxide; scheduling reductions of the emissions cap; imposing greenhouse gas taxes, fines, and other penalties; adopting emissions-reduction performance standards for sources of greenhouse gases; establishing financial or other incentives to promote activities that will reduce greenhouse gases; and enhancing existing policies that have the effect of lowering greenhouse gas emissions.

Subd. 2. **Planning process.** The plan required under subdivision 1 must be developed through a structured, broadly inclusive stakeholder-based review of potential policies and initiatives that can be implemented in Minnesota to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. The stakeholder-based review process must be conducted by a nationally recognized independent expert entity. The commissioner of commerce shall coordinate executive branch participation with this stakeholder process.

Subd. 3. **Cap and trade system.** (a) The plan must include a cap and trade system incorporating, at a minimum, statewide power sector carbon dioxide emissions. The cap and trade plan must:

(1) set an emissions cap at an initial level to prevent significant increases in statewide greenhouse gas emissions above current levels, with a schedule for lowering the cap periodically to help meet the state's emissions-reduction targets;

(2) maximize Minnesota's ability to enter into allowance trading relationships with other states that have established or are in the process of establishing a cap and trade system regulating greenhouse gas emissions;

(3) evaluate the feasibility of implementing a cap and trade system that does not encompass the entire United States, and identify the impacts on the efficiency and effectiveness of the cap and trade system if restricted to Minnesota alone, if expanded to include surrounding midwestern states, and if Minnesota were to join other emerging regional systems with states that are planning to implement a cap and trade system;

(4) evaluate whether and to what extent a party subject to the cap should receive credit for offsetting emissions by implementing projects that reduce greenhouse gas emissions from sources not subject to the cap or absorb and sequester greenhouse gases from the atmosphere;

(5) include methods to ensure that all emissions reductions associated with projects listed in clause (4) are permanent, quantifiable, verifiable, enforceable, and would not have otherwise occurred;

(6) be designed to ensure that the proceeds from auctioning allowances are used to benefit the public, including to help meet the state's emissions-reduction goals in the most efficient and least disruptive way;

(7) estimate likely allowance prices under various scenarios, including the impact on allowance prices of constructing additional power plants subject to the cap and trade system;

(8) recommend ways to minimize any rate impacts on energy consumers;

(9) suggest procedures to award appropriate credit to entities that have voluntarily reduced their greenhouse gas emissions prior to implementation of the cap and trade system;

(10) ensure to the extent practicable that emissions reductions made in this state do not cause emissions increases outside the state;

(11) identify technologies and industries likely to thrive in a carbon-constrained future;

(12) maximize economic development in rural areas from the development of renewable energy sources and proven terrestrial sequestration practices; and

(13) suggest methods to calculate carbon dioxide emissions associated with electricity imported from outside the state.

Subd. 4. **Regional activities.** It shall be an executive branch responsibility to work with other states in the midwest region to develop and implement a regional approach to reducing greenhouse gas emissions from activities in the region, including consulting on expanding the cap and trade system described in subdivision 3. The commissioner of commerce shall coordinate Minnesota's regional activities under this subdivision and report to the legislative committees in the senate and house of representatives with jurisdiction over energy and environmental policy by February 1, 2008, and February 1, 2009, on the progress made and recommendations for further action.

**Sec. 5. [216H.05] NO LONG-TERM INCREASE FROM POWER PLANTS.**

Subdivision 1. **Long-term increased emissions from power plants prohibited.** Until the cap and trade system described in section 216H.04, subdivision 3, is fully implemented, and except as allowed in subdivision 2, no person shall:

(1) construct within the state a new large energy facility that would contribute to statewide power sector carbon dioxide emissions;

(2) import or commit to import from outside the state power from a new large energy facility that would contribute to statewide power sector carbon dioxide emissions; or

(3) enter into a new long-term power purchase agreement that would increase statewide power sector carbon dioxide emissions. For purposes of this section, a long-term power purchase agreement means an agreement to purchase 50 megawatts of capacity or more for a term exceeding five years. This prohibition does not apply to an agreement in effect as of January 1, 2007, nor to the renewal of such an agreement.

Subd. 2. **Exception for facilities that offset emissions.** (a) The prohibitions in subdivision 1 do not apply if the project proponent demonstrates to the Public Utilities Commission's satisfaction that it will offset the new contribution to statewide power sector carbon dioxide emissions with a carbon dioxide reduction project identified in paragraph (b) and in compliance with paragraph (c).

(b) A project proponent may offset the new contribution to statewide power sector carbon dioxide emissions in either, or a combination of both, of the following ways:

(1) by reducing an existing facility's contribution to statewide power sector carbon dioxide emissions in an amount equal to or greater than the proposed new contribution to statewide power sector carbon dioxide emissions;  
or

(2) by purchasing carbon dioxide allowances from a state or group of states that has a mandatory carbon dioxide cap and trade system in place that produces verifiable emissions reductions.

(c) The Public Utilities Commission shall not find that a proposed carbon dioxide reduction project identified in paragraph (b) acceptably offsets a new contribution to statewide power sector carbon dioxide emissions unless the proposed offsets are permanent, quantifiable, verifiable, enforceable, and would not have otherwise occurred. Emissions that have been offset under this subdivision and emissions exempted under subdivision 3 continue to be subject to the requirements of the cap and trade system described in section 216H.04, subdivision 3, when implemented.

Subd. 3. **Exception for new steel production facility.** The prohibitions in subdivision 1 do not apply to increases in statewide power sector carbon dioxide emissions from that portion of a new large energy facility or new long-term power purchase agreement that supplies electricity to a new steel production project located in a taconite tax relief area that has applied for an air quality permit from the Pollution Control Agency prior to January 1, 2007, provided that the commission determines that the new steel production project is designed to meet the highest energy efficiency standards in its industry.

Subd. 4. **Enforcement.** Whenever the commission or department determines that any person is violating or about to violate this section, it shall refer the matter to the attorney general who shall take appropriate legal action. This section may be enforced by the attorney general on the same basis as a law listed in section 8.31, subdivision 1.

Sec. 6. **[216H.06] GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS CONSIDERATION IN RESOURCE PLANNING.**

By January 1, 2008, the Public Utilities Commission shall establish an estimate of the likely range of costs of future carbon dioxide regulation on electricity generation. The estimate, which may be made in a commission order, must be used in all electricity generation resource acquisition proceedings. The estimates, and annual updates, must be made following informal proceedings that allow interested parties to submit comments.

Sec. 7. **[216H.07] ENFORCEABILITY.**

In addition to any other remedies provided by law, the failure to carry out any requirement established by or pursuant to this chapter shall be treated as a violation of an environmental standard and is enforceable under chapter 116B.

## ARTICLE 6

## RENEWABLE ENERGY STANDARDS

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 216B.1691, subdivision 5, as amended by Laws 2007, chapter 3, section 1, subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. **Technology based on fuel combustion.** (a) Electricity produced by fuel combustion through fuel blending or co-firing under paragraph (b) may only count toward a utility's objectives or standards if the generation facility:

(1) was constructed in compliance with new source performance standards promulgated under the federal Clean Air Act for a generation facility of that type; or

(2) employs the maximum achievable or best available control technology available for a generation facility of that type.

(b) An eligible energy technology may blend or co-fire a fuel listed in subdivision 1, paragraph (a), clause ~~(4)~~ (5), with other fuels in the generation facility, but only the percentage of electricity that is attributable to a fuel listed in that clause can be counted toward an electric utility's renewable energy objectives.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 216B.1691, subdivision 7, as added by Laws 2007, chapter 3, section 1, subdivision 7, is amended to read:

Subd. 7. **Compliance.** The commission must regularly investigate whether an electric utility is in compliance with its good-faith objective under subdivision 2 and standard obligation under subdivision 2a. If the commission finds noncompliance, it may order the electric utility to construct facilities, purchase energy generated by eligible energy technology, purchase renewable energy credits, or engage in other activities to achieve compliance. If an electric utility fails to comply with an order under this subdivision, the commission may impose a financial penalty on the electric utility in an amount not to exceed the estimated cost of the electric utility to achieve compliance. The penalty may not exceed the lesser of the cost of constructing facilities or purchasing credits. The commission must deposit financial penalties imposed under this subdivision in the energy and conservation account established in the special revenue fund under section 216B.241, subdivision 2a. This subdivision is in addition to and does not limit any other authority of the commission to enforce this section."

Delete the title and insert:

"A bill for an act relating to energy; enacting the Next Generation Energy Act of 2007, the Global Warming Mitigation Act of 2007, and the Community-Based Development Act of 2007; modifying or adding provisions related to state energy policy goals for fossil fuel-use reduction and renewable energy use, energy efficiency, energy conservation improvement, recovery of energy-related utility costs, energy savings, energy audits, electric utility renewable energy obligations of 25 percent by 2025, community-based energy development, the transition to an energy savings requirement for electric and natural gas utilities, addressing climate change, the reliability administrator, the delegation to counties for permitting wind projects under 25 megawatts, reducing greenhouse gas emissions, and allocation of financial penalties against utilities; requiring studies and reports; making technical and clarifying changes; amending Minnesota Statutes 2006, sections 123B.65, subdivision 2; 216B.16, subdivisions 1, 6b; 216B.1612; 216B.1645, by adding subdivisions; 216B.169; 216B.1691, subdivisions 5, as amended, 7, as added; 216B.241; 216C.05; 216C.052; 216C.31; 471.345, subdivision 13; 500.30, subdivision 2; 504B.161, subdivision 1; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 216B; 216F; proposing coding for new law as Minnesota Statutes, chapter 216H; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2006, sections 216B.165; 216C.27; 216C.30,

subdivision 5; Laws 2007, chapter 3, section 3; Minnesota Rules, parts 7635.0100; 7635.0110; 7635.0120; 7635.0130; 7635.0140; 7635.0150; 7635.0160; 7635.0170; 7635.0180; 7635.0200; 7635.0210; 7635.0220; 7635.0230; 7635.0240; 7635.0250; 7635.0260; 7635.0300; 7635.0310; 7635.0320; 7635.0330; 7635.0340; 7635.0400; 7635.0410; 7635.0420; 7635.0500; 7635.0510; 7635.0520; 7635.0530; 7635.0600; 7635.0610; 7635.0620; 7635.0630; 7635.0640; 7635.1000; 7635.1010; 7635.1020; 7635.1030; 7655.0100; 7655.0120; 7655.0200; 7655.0210; 7655.0220; 7655.0230; 7655.0240; 7655.0250; 7655.0260; 7655.0270; 7655.0280; 7655.0290; 7655.0300; 7655.0310; 7655.0320; 7655.0330; 7655.0400; 7655.0410; 7655.0420."

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Ways and Means.

The report was adopted.

Carlson from the Committee on Finance to which was referred:

S. F. No. 538, A bill for an act relating to state government; establishing a heating and cooling policy for building projects funded with state appropriations; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 16B.

Reported the same back with the following amendments:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. **[16B.326] HEATING AND COOLING SYSTEMS; STATE-FUNDED BUILDINGS.**

The commissioner must review and study geothermal and solar thermal applications as possible uses for heating or cooling for all building projects subject to a predesign review under section 16B.335 that receive any state funding for replacement of heating or cooling systems. When practicable, geothermal and solar thermal heating and cooling systems must be considered when designing, planning, or letting bids for necessary replacement or initial installation of cooling or heating systems in new or existing buildings that are constructed or maintained with state funds. The predesign review must include a written plan for compliance with this section from a project proposer.

For the purposes of this section, "solar thermal" means a flat plate or evacuated tube with a fixed orientation that collects the sun's radiant energy and transfers it to a storage medium for distribution as energy for heating and cooling.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective July 1, 2007, and applies to cooling or heating systems replacement or installation in buildings that are constructed or maintained with state funds that are subject to predesign review on or after that date."

Delete the title and insert:

"A bill for an act relating to state government; establishing a heating and cooling policy for building projects funded with state appropriations; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 16B."

With the recommendation that when so amended the bill pass.

The report was adopted.

**SECOND READING OF SENATE BILLS**

S. F. Nos. 475, 1557, 1857 and 538 were read for the second time.

**INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING OF HOUSE BILLS**

The following House Files were introduced:

Olson introduced:

H. F. No. 2457, A bill for an act relating to capital improvements; appropriating money for an ice arena in Big Lake.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Finance.

Eken introduced:

H. F. No. 2458, A bill for an act relating to capital investment; appropriating money for construction of a Native American juvenile treatment center; authorizing the issuance of general obligation bonds.

The bill was read for the first time and referred to the Committee on Finance.

Nelson moved that the House recess subject to the call of the Chair. The motion prevailed.

RECESS

RECONVENED

The House reconvened and was called to order by the Speaker.

**FISCAL CALENDAR**

Pursuant to rule 1.22, Lenczewski requested immediate consideration of H. F. No. 2362.

H. F. No. 2362 was read for the third time.

**POINT OF ORDER**

Seifert raised a point of order pursuant to section 95, paragraph 1, of "Mason's Manual of Legislative Procedure," relating to Yielding the Floor in Debate. The Speaker ruled the point of order well taken.



## CALL OF THE HOUSE

On the motion of Seifert and on the demand of 10 members, a call of the House was ordered. The following members answered to their names:

Anderson, B.	Doty	Holberg	Magnus	Peppin	Sviggum
Anderson, S.	Eastlund	Hoppe	Mahoney	Peterson, A.	Swails
Anzelc	Eken	Hornstein	Marquart	Peterson, N.	Thao
Atkins	Emmer	Hortman	Masin	Peterson, S.	Thissen
Beard	Erhardt	Jaros	McFarlane	Poppe	Tillberry
Benson	Erickson	Johnson	McNamara	Rukavina	Tingelstad
Bigham	Faust	Juhnke	Morgan	Ruth	Tschumper
Brod	Finstad	Kalin	Morrow	Ruud	Urdahl
Brown	Fritz	Koenen	Mullery	Sailer	Ward
Brynaert	Gardner	Kohls	Murphy, E.	Scalze	Wardlow
Buesgens	Garofalo	Kranz	Nelson	Seifert	Welti
Bunn	Greiling	Laine	Nornes	Sertich	Winkler
Cornish	Gunther	Lanning	Norton	Severson	Wollschlager
Davnie	Hackbarth	Lenczewski	Olin	Shimanski	Zellers
Dean	Hamilton	Lesch	Olson	Simon	Spk. Kelliher
DeLaForest	Hansen	Liebling	Otremba	Simpson	
Demmer	Hausman	Lieder	Ozment	Slawik	
Dettmer	Haws	Lillie	Paulsen	Slocum	
Dittrich	Heidgerken	Loeffler	Paymar	Smith	
Dominguez	Hilstrom	Madore	Pelowski	Solberg	

Sertich moved that further proceedings of the roll call be suspended and that the Sergeant at Arms be instructed to bring in the absentees. The motion prevailed and it was so ordered.

H. F. No. 2362, A bill for an act relating to the financing and operation of state and local government; making policy, technical, administrative, enforcement, collection, refund, and other changes to income, franchise, property, sales and use, motor vehicle sales, health care provider, cigarette and tobacco products, insurance premiums, aggregate removal, mortgage, deed, production, estate, gambling, and other taxes and tax-related provisions; providing a homestead credit state refund; providing for aids to local governments; increasing property tax refunds; providing and changing income and franchise tax credits, subtractions, apportionment, and alternative minimum taxes; adding an income tax bracket and rate; requiring tax withholding; modifying taxation of certain compensation paid to nonresidents; providing for taxation of foreign operating corporations; modifying and authorizing sales tax exemptions; prohibiting new local sales taxes; modifying and authorizing local government sales taxes; imposing a surcharge on certain admissions; modifying property tax exemptions, tax bases, levies, valuation, classes, class rates, credits, statements, abatement, truth in taxation, payment options, and appeals; extending and establishing certain property tax deferral programs; changing tax increment financing provisions; changing certain border city allocation and JOBZ requirements; establishing a FARMZ program; changing provisions relating to fiscal disparities, state debt collection procedures, sustainable forest incentives programs, tax-forfeited land sales, leases, exchanges, and use of proceeds; changing distributions of production tax proceeds; providing for purchase of forest lands; providing for higher education grants in the taconite assistance area; providing for taxation of gifts; conforming provisions to certain changes in federal laws; changing and imposing powers, duties, and requirements on certain local governments and authorities and state departments or agencies; transferring money to the budget reserve account; providing for state funds and accounts; providing for bioscience, land conservation, film production costs reimbursement, and Lignocellulosic ethanol production grants; authorizing release of certain data; requiring studies; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 2006, sections 16A.152, subdivisions 1b, 2, by adding a subdivision; 16D.04, subdivisions 1, 2; 16D.11, subdivisions 2, 7; 37.13, by adding a subdivision; 62I.06,

subdivision 6; 71A.04, subdivision 1; 97A.061, subdivision 2; 127A.48, subdivision 3; 268.19, subdivision 1; 270.071, subdivision 7; 270.072, subdivisions 2, 3, 6; 270.074, subdivision 3; 270.076, subdivision 1; 270.41, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 5, by adding a subdivision; 270.44; 270.45; 270.46; 270.47; 270.48; 270.50; 270A.03, subdivision 5; 270B.15; 270C.03, subdivision 1; 270C.306; 270C.34, subdivision 1; 270C.446, subdivision 2; 270C.56, subdivision 1; 270C.63, subdivision 9; 272.02, subdivision 64, by adding subdivisions; 272.115, subdivision 1; 273.05, by adding a subdivision; 273.11, subdivision 1a, by adding a subdivision; 273.111, subdivision 3, by adding a subdivision; 273.117; 273.121; 273.123, subdivisions 2, 3, 7; 273.124, subdivisions 1, 13, 14, 21; 273.125, subdivision 8; 273.128, subdivision 1, by adding a subdivision; 273.13, subdivisions 22, 23, 24, 25, 33, by adding a subdivision; 273.1384, subdivision 1; 273.1398, subdivision 4; 273.33, subdivision 2; 273.37, subdivision 2; 273.371, subdivision 1; 274.01, subdivision 1; 274.13, subdivision 1; 275.065, subdivisions 3, 5a, by adding subdivisions; 275.067; 276.04, subdivision 2, by adding a subdivision; 277.01, subdivision 2; 278.05, subdivision 6; 279.01, subdivision 1, by adding a subdivision; 279.37, subdivision 1a; 280.39; 287.22; 287.2205; 289A.02, subdivision 7; 289A.08, subdivisions 3, 11, 13; 289A.09, subdivision 2; 289A.12, subdivisions 4, 14, by adding a subdivision; 289A.18, subdivision 1; 289A.31, subdivision 7; 289A.40, subdivisions 2, 4; 289A.56, by adding a subdivision; 289A.60, subdivisions 8, 12, 25, 27, by adding subdivisions; 290.01, subdivisions 5, 19, as amended, 19b, 19c, 19d, 31, as amended; 290.06, subdivisions 2c, 2d, 33, by adding a subdivision; 290.067, subdivisions 1, 2b; 290.0671, subdivision 7; 290.0677, subdivision 1; 290.091, subdivision 3; 290.0921, subdivision 3; 290.17, subdivisions 2, 4, by adding a subdivision; 290.191, subdivisions 2, 3, 5, 8; 290.21, subdivision 4; 290.92, by adding a subdivision; 290A.03, subdivisions 7, 13, 15, as amended; 290A.04, subdivisions 2a, 2h, 3, 4, by adding a subdivision; 290B.03, subdivisions 1, 2; 290B.04, subdivisions 3, 4; 290B.05, subdivision 1; 290B.07; 290C.02, subdivision 3; 290C.04; 290C.05; 290C.07; 290C.11; 291.005, subdivision 1; 291.03, subdivision 1, by adding subdivisions; 291.215, subdivision 1; 295.52, subdivisions 4, 4a; 295.54, subdivision 2; 296A.18, subdivision 4; 297A.61, subdivisions 3, 4, 7, 10, 12, 24, by adding subdivisions; 297A.63, subdivision 1; 297A.665; 297A.668, by adding a subdivision; 297A.669, subdivisions 3, 13, 14, by adding subdivisions; 297A.67, subdivisions 7, 8, 9; 297A.68, subdivisions 11, 16, 35, by adding a subdivision; 297A.69, subdivisions 2, 3; 297A.70, subdivisions 3, 7, 8, by adding subdivisions; 297A.71, subdivision 23, by adding subdivisions; 297A.72; 297A.75, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, by adding a subdivision; 297A.90, subdivision 2; 297A.99, subdivision 1; 297B.03; 297B.035, subdivision 1; 297E.02, by adding a subdivision; 297F.01, subdivision 19, by adding a subdivision; 297F.05, subdivisions 3, 4, by adding a subdivision; 297F.06, subdivision 4; 297F.21, subdivision 3; 297F.25, by adding a subdivision; 297I.06, subdivisions 1, 2; 297I.15, by adding a subdivision; 297I.20, subdivision 2; 297I.40, subdivision 5; 298.22, by adding a subdivision; 298.2214, subdivision 2; 298.28, subdivision 4, by adding a subdivision; 298.292, subdivision 2; 298.2961, subdivision 4; 298.75, by adding a subdivision; 424A.10, subdivision 3; 435.193; 469.169, by adding a subdivision; 469.1734, subdivision 6; 469.174, subdivisions 10, 10a, 27; 469.175, subdivisions 1, 3; 469.176, subdivisions 1, 2, 4l, 7; 469.1761, subdivision 1; 469.1763, subdivision 2; 469.177, subdivision 1; 469.178, subdivision 7; 469.1791, subdivision 3; 469.1813, subdivision 1a; 469.310, by adding a subdivision; 469.312, by adding subdivisions; 469.314, subdivision 1; 469.3201; 473F.01, subdivision 2; 473F.08, subdivisions 5, 7a; 477A.011, subdivisions 34, 36; 477A.0124, subdivision 5; 477A.013, subdivisions 8, 9, by adding a subdivision; 477A.03; 477A.12, subdivision 1; 477A.14, subdivision 1; Laws 1973, chapter 393, section 1; Laws 1980, chapter 511, section 1, subdivision 2, as amended; Laws 1994, chapter 587, article 9, section 14, subdivisions 1, 2, 3; Laws 1995, chapter 264, article 5, sections 44, subdivision 4, as amended; 45, subdivision 1, as amended; Laws 2005, First Special Session chapter 3, article 5, section 39; Laws 2006, chapter 236, article 1, section 21; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 84; 270; 270C; 273; 274; 290; 290C; 295; 297A; 383D; 383E; 469; proposing coding for new law as Minnesota Statutes, chapter 290D; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2006, sections 270.073; 270.41, subdivision 4; 270.43; 270.51; 270.52; 270.53; 290.01, subdivision 6b; 290.0921, subdivision 7; 290.191, subdivision 4; 290A.04, subdivisions 2, 2b; 295.60; 297A.61, subdivision 20; 297A.668, subdivision 6; 297A.67, subdivision 22; 383A.80, subdivision 4; 383B.80, subdivision 4; 469.174, subdivision 29; 473F.08, subdivision 3a; Laws 1973, chapter 393, section 2; Laws 1994, chapter 587, article 9, section 8, subdivision 1, as amended.

The bill was placed upon its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill and the roll was called. There were 74 yeas and 59 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Anzelc	Faust	Juhnke	Madore	Paymar	Thissen
Atkins	Fritz	Kahn	Mahoney	Peterson, A.	Tillberry
Bigham	Greiling	Kalin	Mariani	Peterson, S.	Tschumper
Bly	Hansen	Knuth	Marquart	Poppe	Wagenius
Brynaert	Hausman	Koenen	Masin	Rukavina	Walker
Carlson	Hilstrom	Kranz	Moe	Sailer	Ward
Clark	Hilty	Laine	Morrow	Scalze	Winkler
Davnie	Hornstein	Lenczewski	Mullery	Sertich	Wollschlager
Dill	Hortman	Lesch	Murphy, E.	Simon	Spk. Kelliher
Dittrich	Hosch	Liebling	Murphy, M.	Slawik	
Dominguez	Huntley	Lieder	Nelson	Slocum	
Doty	Jaros	Lillie	Olin	Solberg	
Eken	Johnson	Loeffler	Otremba	Thao	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Abeler	Cornish	Gardner	Kohls	Paulsen	Smith
Anderson, B.	Dean	Garofalo	Lanning	Pelowski	Sviggum
Anderson, S.	DeLaForest	Gunther	Magnus	Peppin	Swails
Beard	Demmer	Hackbarth	McFarlane	Peterson, N.	Tingelstad
Benson	Dettmer	Hamilton	McNamara	Ruth	Urdahl
Berns	Eastlund	Haws	Morgan	Ruud	Wardlow
Brod	Emmer	Heidgerken	Nornes	Seifert	Wolti
Brown	Erhardt	Holberg	Norton	Severson	Westrom
Buesgens	Erickson	Hoppe	Olson	Shimanski	Zellers
Bunn	Finstad	Howes	Ozment	Simpson	

The bill was passed and its title agreed to.

#### CALL OF THE HOUSE LIFTED

Sertich moved that the call of the House be lifted. The motion prevailed and it was so ordered.

#### CALENDAR FOR THE DAY

S. F. No. 420 was reported to the House.

Hansen moved to amend S. F. No. 420, the first engrossment, as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert the following language of H. F. No. 1016, the first engrossment:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 89.55, is amended to read:

**89.55 INFESTATION CONTROL, COSTS.**

Upon the establishment of the zone of infestation, the commissioner may apply measures of infestation control on public and private forest and other lands within ~~such an infected~~ zone and to any trees, timber, plants ~~or~~ shrubs ~~thereon, or contaminated soil~~ harboring or which may harbor the forest pests. For this purpose, the duly authorized representatives of the commissioner are authorized to enter upon any lands, public or private within such zone. The commissioner may enter into agreements with owners of the lands in the zone covering the control work on their lands, and fixing the pro rata basis on which the cost of ~~such the~~ work will be shared between the commissioner and said owner.

**Sec. 2. [89.551] APPROVED FIREWOOD REQUIRED.**

(a) After the commissioner issues an order under paragraph (b), a person may not possess firewood on land administered by the commissioner of natural resources unless the firewood:

(1) was obtained from a firewood distribution facility located on land administered by the commissioner;

(2) was obtained from a firewood dealer who is selling firewood that is approved by the commissioner under paragraph (b); or

(3) has been approved by the commissioner of natural resources under paragraph (b).

(b) The commissioner of natural resources shall, by written order published in the State Register, approve firewood for possession on lands administered by the commissioner. The order is not subject to the rulemaking provisions of chapter 14 and section 14.386 does not apply.

(c) A violation under this section is subject to confiscation of firewood and after May 1, 2008, confiscation and a \$100 penalty. A firewood dealer shall be subject to confiscation and assessed a \$100 penalty for each sale of firewood not approved under the provisions of this section and sold for use on land administered by the commissioner.

(d) For the purposes of this section, "firewood" means any wood that is intended for use in a campfire, as defined in section 88.01, subdivision 25.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 239.092, is amended to read:

**239.092 SALE FROM BULK.**

(a) Bulk sales of commodities, when the buyer and seller are not both present to witness the measurement, must be accompanied by a delivery ticket containing the following information:

(1) the name and address of the person who weighed or measured the commodity;

(2) the date delivered;

(3) the quantity delivered;

(4) the count of individually wrapped packages delivered, if more than one is included in the quantity delivered;

(5) the quantity on which the price is based, if different than the quantity delivered; and

(6) the identity of the commodity in the most descriptive terms commercially practicable, including representations of quality made in connection with the sale.

(b) This section is not intended to conflict with the bulk sale requirements of the Department of Agriculture. If a conflict occurs, the law and rules of the Department of Agriculture govern.

(c) Firewood sold or distributed across state boundaries or more than 100 miles from its origin must include delivery ticket information regarding the harvest locations of the wood by county and state.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 239.093, is amended to read:

**239.093 INFORMATION REQUIRED WITH PACKAGE.**

(a) A package offered, exposed, or held for sale must bear a clear and conspicuous declaration of:

(1) the identity of the commodity in the package, unless the commodity can be easily identified through the wrapper or container;

(2) the net quantity in terms of weight, measure, or count;

(3) the name and address of the manufacturer, packer, or distributor, if the packages were not produced on the premises where they are offered, exposed, or held for sale; and

(4) the unit price, if the packages are part of a lot containing random weight packages of the same commodity.

(b) This section is not intended to conflict with the packaging requirements of the Department of Agriculture. If a conflict occurs, the laws and rules of the Department of Agriculture govern.

(c) Firewood sold or distributed across state boundaries or more than 100 miles from its origin must include information regarding the harvest locations of the wood by county and state on each label or wrapper."

Delete the title and insert:

"A bill for an act relating to natural resources; providing for pest control measures; requiring approved firewood on land administered by the commissioner of natural resources; regulating sale and distribution of firewood; amending Minnesota Statutes 2006, sections 89.55; 239.092; 239.093; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 89."

The motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted.

Winkler was excused for the remainder of today's session.

Anderson, S., and McNamara moved to amend S. F. No. 420, the first engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 2, after line 13, insert:

"(e) All firewood offered for sale in Minnesota by the Department of Natural Resources, must be purchased by the Department of Natural Resources in Minnesota."

A roll call was requested and properly seconded.

The question was taken on the Anderson, S., and McNamara amendment and the roll was called. There were 33 yeas and 99 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Emmer	Hackbarth	McNamara	Ruth	Urdahl
Anderson, B.	Erhardt	Hamilton	Nornes	Seifert	Westrom
Anderson, S.	Erickson	Heidgerken	Olson	Severson	Zellers
Brod	Finstad	Holberg	Paulsen	Shimanski	
Buesgens	Garofalo	Lanning	Peppin	Smith	
Demmer	Gunther	McFarlane	Peterson, N.	Sviggun	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Anzelc	Dill	Hortman	Lieder	Olin	Solberg
Atkins	Dittrich	Hosch	Lillie	Otremba	Swails
Beard	Dominguez	Howes	Loeffler	Ozment	Thao
Benson	Doty	Huntley	Madore	Paymar	Thissen
Berns	Eastlund	Jaros	Magnus	Pelowski	Tillberry
Bigham	Eken	Johnson	Mahoney	Peterson, A.	Tingelstad
Bly	Faust	Juhnke	Mariani	Peterson, S.	Tschumper
Brown	Fritz	Kahn	Marquart	Poppe	Wagenius
Brynaert	Gardner	Kalin	Masin	Rukavina	Walker
Bunn	Greiling	Knuth	Moe	Ruud	Ward
Carlson	Hansen	Koenen	Morgan	Sailer	Wardlow
Clark	Hausman	Kohls	Morrow	Scalze	Welti
Cornish	Haws	Kranz	Mullery	Sertich	Wollschlager
Davnie	Hilstrom	Laine	Murphy, E.	Simon	Spk. Kelliher
Dean	Hilty	Lenczewski	Murphy, M.	Simpson	
DeLaForest	Hoppe	Lesch	Nelson	Slawik	
Dettmer	Hornstein	Liebling	Norton	Slocum	

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted.

Hoppe was excused for the remainder of today's session.

Westrom moved to amend S. F. No. 420, the first engrossment, as amended, as follows:

Page 2, after line 13, insert:

"(e) This section expires five years after the effective date."

A roll call was requested and properly seconded.

The question was taken on the Westrom amendment and the roll was called. There were 37 yeas and 95 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	DeLaForest	Gunther	Magnus	Ruth	Westrom
Anderson, B.	Demmer	Hackbarth	McFarlane	Seifert	Zellers
Beard	Dettmer	Hamilton	McNamara	Severson	
Berns	Emmer	Heidgerken	Nornes	Shimanski	
Brod	Erickson	Holberg	Olson	Simpson	
Buesgens	Finstad	Kohls	Paulsen	Smith	
Dean	Garofalo	Lanning	Peppin	Svigum	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Anderson, S.	Doty	Hosch	Lillie	Otremba	Solberg
Anzelc	Eastlund	Howes	Loeffler	Ozment	Swails
Atkins	Eken	Huntley	Madore	Paymar	Thao
Benson	Erhardt	Jaros	Mahoney	Pelowski	Thissen
Bigham	Faust	Johnson	Mariani	Peterson, A.	Tillberry
Bly	Fritz	Juhnke	Marquart	Peterson, N.	Tingelstad
Brown	Gardner	Kahn	Masin	Peterson, S.	Tschumper
Brynaert	Greiling	Kalin	Moe	Poppe	Urdahl
Bunn	Hansen	Knuth	Morgan	Rukavina	Wagenius
Carlson	Hausman	Koenen	Morrow	Ruud	Walker
Clark	Haws	Kranz	Mullery	Sailer	Ward
Cornish	Hilstrom	Laine	Murphy, E.	Scalze	Wardlow
Davnie	Hilty	Lenczewski	Murphy, M.	Sertich	Welti
Dill	Hoppe	Lesch	Nelson	Simon	Wollschlager
Dittrich	Hornstein	Liebling	Norton	Slawik	Spk. Kelliher
Dominguez	Hortman	Lieder	Olin	Slocum	

The motion did not prevail and the amendment was not adopted.

Hamilton and Kohls were excused for the remainder of today's session.

S. F. No. 420, A bill for an act relating to natural resources; providing for pest control measures; requiring approved firewood on land administered by the commissioner of natural resources; amending Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 89.55; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 89.

The bill was read for the third time, as amended, and placed upon its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill and the roll was called. There were 115 yeas and 13 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Atkins	Berns	Brown	Carlson	Davnie
Anderson, S.	Beard	Bigham	Brynaert	Clark	DeLaForest
Anzelc	Benson	Bly	Bunn	Cornish	Demmer

Dettmer	Haws	Laine	Morrow	Ruth	Tillberry
Dill	Hilstrom	Lanning	Mullery	Ruud	Tingelstad
Dittrich	Hilty	Lenczewski	Murphy, E.	Sailer	Tschumper
Dominguez	Holberg	Lesch	Murphy, M.	Scalze	Urdahl
Doty	Hornstein	Liebling	Nelson	Sertich	Wagenius
Eastlund	Hortman	Lieder	Nornes	Severson	Walker
Eken	Hosch	Lillie	Norton	Shimanski	Ward
Erhardt	Howes	Loeffler	Olin	Simon	Wardlow
Faust	Huntley	Madore	Otremba	Simpson	Welti
Fritz	Jaros	Mahoney	Ozment	Slawik	Wollschlager
Gardner	Johnson	Mariani	Paymar	Slocum	Zellers
Garofalo	Juhnke	Marquart	Pelowski	Smith	Spk. Kelliher
Greiling	Kahn	Masin	Peterson, A.	Solberg	
Gunther	Kalin	McFarlane	Peterson, N.	Sviggum	
Hackbarth	Knuth	McNamara	Peterson, S.	Swails	
Hansen	Koenen	Moe	Poppe	Thao	
Hausman	Kranz	Morgan	Rukavina	Thissen	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Anderson, B.	Dean	Heidgerken	Paulsen	Westrom
Brod	Emmer	Magnus	Peppin	
Buesgens	Finstad	Olson	Seifert	

The bill was passed, as amended, and its title agreed to.

There being no objection, the order of business reverted to Messages from the Senate.

### MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

The following messages were received from the Senate:

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate refuses to concur in the House amendments to the following Senate File:

S. F. No. 238, A bill for an act relating to health; establishing public policy to protect employees and the general public from the hazards of secondhand smoke; requiring persons to refrain from smoking in certain areas; amending Minnesota Statutes 2006, sections 144.412; 144.413, subdivisions 2, 4, by adding subdivisions; 144.414; 144.416; 144.417; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 144; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 144.415.

The Senate respectfully requests that a Conference Committee be appointed thereon. The Senate has appointed as such committee:

Senators Sheran, Dibble, Latz, Dille, and Rosen.

Said Senate File is herewith transmitted to the House with the request that the House appoint a like committee.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate



Huntley moved that the House accede to the request of the Senate and that the Speaker appoint a Conference Committee of 5 members of the House to meet with a like committee appointed by the Senate on the disagreeing votes of the two houses on S. F. No. 238. The motion prevailed.

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce the passage by the Senate of the following House File, herewith returned, as amended by the Senate, in which amendments the concurrence of the House is respectfully requested:

H. F. No. 2362, A bill for an act relating to the financing and operation of state and local government; making policy, technical, administrative, enforcement, collection, refund, and other changes to income, franchise, property, sales and use, motor vehicle sales, health care provider, cigarette and tobacco products, insurance premiums, aggregate removal, mortgage, deed, production, estate, gambling, and other taxes and tax-related provisions; providing a homestead credit state refund; providing for aids to local governments; increasing property tax refunds; providing and changing income and franchise tax credits, subtractions, apportionment, and alternative minimum taxes; adding an income tax bracket and rate; requiring tax withholding; modifying taxation of certain compensation paid to nonresidents; providing for taxation of foreign operating corporations; modifying and authorizing sales tax exemptions; prohibiting new local sales taxes; modifying and authorizing local government sales taxes; imposing a surcharge on certain admissions; modifying property tax exemptions, tax bases, levies, valuation, classes, class rates, credits, statements, abatement, truth in taxation, payment options, and appeals; extending and establishing certain property tax deferral programs; changing tax increment financing provisions; changing certain border city allocation and JOBZ requirements; establishing a FARMZ program; changing provisions relating to fiscal disparities, state debt collection procedures, sustainable forest incentives programs, tax-forfeited land sales, leases, exchanges, and use of proceeds; changing distributions of production tax proceeds; providing for purchase of forest lands; providing for higher education grants in the taconite assistance area; providing for taxation of gifts; conforming provisions to certain changes in federal laws; changing and imposing powers, duties, and requirements on certain local governments and authorities and state departments or agencies; transferring money to the budget reserve account; providing for state funds and accounts; providing for bioscience, land conservation, film production costs reimbursement, and Lignocellulosic ethanol production grants; authorizing release of certain data; requiring studies; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 2006, sections 16A.152, subdivisions 1b, 2, by adding a subdivision; 16D.04, subdivisions 1, 2; 16D.11, subdivisions 2, 7; 37.13, by adding a subdivision; 62I.06, subdivision 6; 71A.04, subdivision 1; 97A.061, subdivision 2; 127A.48, subdivision 3; 268.19, subdivision 1; 270.071, subdivision 7; 270.072, subdivisions 2, 3, 6; 270.074, subdivision 3; 270.076, subdivision 1; 270.41, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 5, by adding a subdivision; 270.44; 270.45; 270.46; 270.47; 270.48; 270.50; 270A.03, subdivision 5; 270B.15; 270C.03, subdivision 1; 270C.306; 270C.34, subdivision 1; 270C.446, subdivision 2; 270C.56, subdivision 1; 270C.63, subdivision 9; 272.02, subdivision 64, by adding subdivisions; 272.115, subdivision 1; 273.05, by adding a subdivision; 273.11, subdivision 1a, by adding a subdivision; 273.111, subdivision 3, by adding a subdivision; 273.117; 273.121; 273.123, subdivisions 2, 3, 7; 273.124, subdivisions 1, 13, 14, 21; 273.125, subdivision 8; 273.128, subdivision 1, by adding a subdivision; 273.13, subdivisions 22, 23, 24, 25, 33, by adding a subdivision; 273.1384, subdivision 1; 273.1398, subdivision 4; 273.33, subdivision 2; 273.37, subdivision 2; 273.371, subdivision 1; 274.01, subdivision 1; 274.13, subdivision 1; 275.065, subdivisions 3, 5a, by adding subdivisions; 275.067; 276.04, subdivision 2, by adding a subdivision; 277.01, subdivision 2; 278.05, subdivision 6; 279.01, subdivision 1, by adding a subdivision; 279.37, subdivision 1a; 280.39; 287.22; 287.2205; 289A.02, subdivision 7; 289A.08, subdivisions 3, 11, 13; 289A.09, subdivision 2; 289A.12, subdivisions 4, 14, by adding a subdivision; 289A.18, subdivision 1; 289A.31, subdivision 7; 289A.40, subdivisions 2, 4; 289A.56, by adding a subdivision; 289A.60, subdivisions 8, 12, 25, 27, by adding subdivisions; 290.01, subdivisions 5, 19, as amended, 19b, 19c, 19d, 31, as amended; 290.06, subdivisions 2c, 2d, 33, by adding a subdivision; 290.067, subdivisions 1, 2b; 290.0671, subdivision 7; 290.0677, subdivision 1; 290.091, subdivision 3; 290.0921, subdivision 3; 290.17, subdivisions 2, 4, by adding a subdivision; 290.191, subdivisions 2, 3, 5, 8; 290.21, subdivision 4; 290.92,

by adding a subdivision; 290A.03, subdivisions 7, 13, 15, as amended; 290A.04, subdivisions 2a, 2h, 3, 4, by adding a subdivision; 290B.03, subdivisions 1, 2; 290B.04, subdivisions 3, 4; 290B.05, subdivision 1; 290B.07; 290C.02, subdivision 3; 290C.04; 290C.05; 290C.07; 290C.11; 291.005, subdivision 1; 291.03, subdivision 1, by adding subdivisions; 291.215, subdivision 1; 295.52, subdivisions 4, 4a; 295.54, subdivision 2; 296A.18, subdivision 4; 297A.61, subdivisions 3, 4, 7, 10, 12, 24, by adding subdivisions; 297A.63, subdivision 1; 297A.665; 297A.668, by adding a subdivision; 297A.669, subdivisions 3, 13, 14, by adding subdivisions; 297A.67, subdivisions 7, 8, 9; 297A.68, subdivisions 11, 16, 35, by adding a subdivision; 297A.69, subdivisions 2, 3; 297A.70, subdivisions 3, 7, 8, by adding subdivisions; 297A.71, subdivision 23, by adding subdivisions; 297A.72; 297A.75, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, by adding a subdivision; 297A.90, subdivision 2; 297A.99, subdivision 1; 297B.03; 297B.035, subdivision 1; 297E.02, by adding a subdivision; 297F.01, subdivision 19, by adding a subdivision; 297F.05, subdivisions 3, 4, by adding a subdivision; 297F.06, subdivision 4; 297F.21, subdivision 3; 297F.25, by adding a subdivision; 297I.06, subdivisions 1, 2; 297I.15, by adding a subdivision; 297I.20, subdivision 2; 297I.40, subdivision 5; 298.22, by adding a subdivision; 298.2214, subdivision 2; 298.28, subdivision 4, by adding a subdivision; 298.292, subdivision 2; 298.2961, subdivision 4; 298.75, by adding a subdivision; 424A.10, subdivision 3; 435.193; 469.169, by adding a subdivision; 469.1734, subdivision 6; 469.174, subdivisions 10, 10a, 27; 469.175, subdivisions 1, 3; 469.176, subdivisions 1, 2, 4l, 7; 469.1761, subdivision 1; 469.1763, subdivision 2; 469.177, subdivision 1; 469.178, subdivision 7; 469.1791, subdivision 3; 469.1813, subdivision 1a; 469.310, by adding a subdivision; 469.312, by adding subdivisions; 469.314, subdivision 1; 469.3201; 473F.01, subdivision 2; 473F.08, subdivisions 5, 7a; 477A.011, subdivisions 34, 36; 477A.0124, subdivision 5; 477A.013, subdivisions 8, 9, by adding a subdivision; 477A.03; 477A.12, subdivision 1; 477A.14, subdivision 1; Laws 1973, chapter 393, section 1; Laws 1980, chapter 511, section 1, subdivision 2, as amended; Laws 1994, chapter 587, article 9, section 14, subdivisions 1, 2, 3; Laws 1995, chapter 264, article 5, sections 44, subdivision 4, as amended; 45, subdivision 1, as amended; Laws 2005, First Special Session chapter 3, article 5, section 39; Laws 2006, chapter 236, article 1, section 21; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 84; 270; 270C; 273; 274; 290; 290C; 295; 297A; 383D; 383E; 469; proposing coding for new law as Minnesota Statutes, chapter 290D; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2006, sections 270.073; 270.41, subdivision 4; 270.43; 270.51; 270.52; 270.53; 290.01, subdivision 6b; 290.0921, subdivision 7; 290.191, subdivision 4; 290A.04, subdivisions 2, 2b; 295.60; 297A.61, subdivision 20; 297A.668, subdivision 6; 297A.67, subdivision 22; 383A.80, subdivision 4; 383B.80, subdivision 4; 469.174, subdivision 29; 473F.08, subdivision 3a; Laws 1973, chapter 393, section 2; Laws 1994, chapter 587, article 9, section 8, subdivision 1, as amended.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

Lenczewski moved that the House refuse to concur in the Senate amendments to H. F. No. 2362, that the Speaker appoint a Conference Committee of 5 members of the House, and that the House requests that a like committee be appointed by the Senate to confer on the disagreeing votes of the two houses. The motion prevailed.

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate accedes to the request of the House for the appointment of a Conference Committee on the amendments adopted by the Senate to the following House File:

H. F. No. 272, A bill for an act relating to the military and veterans; clarifying that a statute ensuring the continuation of state licenses and certificates of registration for any trade, employment, occupation, or profession while soldiers and certain essential employees are engaged in active military service applies to licenses and certificates of registration requiring firearms and use of force training; amending Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 326.56, subdivision 2.

The Senate has appointed as such committee:

Senators Skogen, Erickson Ropes, and Ingebrigtsen.

Said House File is herewith returned to the House.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

#### ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE SPEAKER

The Speaker announced the appointment of the following members of the House to a Conference Committee on S. F. No. 238:

Huntley; Murphy, E.; Norton; Tschumper and Severson.

The Speaker announced the appointment of the following members of the House to a Conference Committee on H. F. No. 2362:

Lenczewski, Marquart, Carlson, Davnie and Simpson.

The Speaker announced the appointment of the following members of the House to a Conference Committee on S. F. No. 1045:

Kohls, Hilstrom and Beard.

#### MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE, *Continued*

The following message was received from the Senate:

Madam Speaker:

I hereby announce that the Senate accedes to the request of the House for the appointment of a Conference Committee on the amendments adopted by the Senate to the following House File:

H. F. No. 2362, A bill for an act relating to the financing and operation of state and local government; making policy, technical, administrative, enforcement, collection, refund, and other changes to income, franchise, property, sales and use, motor vehicle sales, health care provider, cigarette and tobacco products, insurance premiums, aggregate removal, mortgage, deed, production, estate, gambling, and other taxes and tax-related provisions; providing a homestead credit state refund; providing for aids to local governments; increasing property tax refunds; providing and changing income and franchise tax credits, subtractions, apportionment, and alternative minimum taxes; adding an income tax bracket and rate; requiring tax withholding; modifying taxation of certain compensation paid to nonresidents; providing for taxation of foreign operating corporations; modifying and authorizing sales tax exemptions; prohibiting new local sales taxes; modifying and authorizing local government sales taxes; imposing a surcharge on certain admissions; modifying property tax exemptions, tax bases, levies, valuation, classes, class rates, credits, statements, abatement, truth in taxation, payment options, and appeals; extending and establishing certain

property tax deferral programs; changing tax increment financing provisions; changing certain border city allocation and JOBZ requirements; establishing a FARMZ program; changing provisions relating to fiscal disparities, state debt collection procedures, sustainable forest incentives programs, tax-forfeited land sales, leases, exchanges, and use of proceeds; changing distributions of production tax proceeds; providing for purchase of forest lands; providing for higher education grants in the taconite assistance area; providing for taxation of gifts; conforming provisions to certain changes in federal laws; changing and imposing powers, duties, and requirements on certain local governments and authorities and state departments or agencies; transferring money to the budget reserve account; providing for state funds and accounts; providing for bioscience, land conservation, film production costs reimbursement, and Lignocellulosic ethanol production grants; authorizing release of certain data; requiring studies; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 2006, sections 16A.152, subdivisions 1b, 2, by adding a subdivision; 16D.04, subdivisions 1, 2; 16D.11, subdivisions 2, 7; 37.13, by adding a subdivision; 62I.06, subdivision 6; 71A.04, subdivision 1; 97A.061, subdivision 2; 127A.48, subdivision 3; 268.19, subdivision 1; 270.071, subdivision 7; 270.072, subdivisions 2, 3, 6; 270.074, subdivision 3; 270.076, subdivision 1; 270.41, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 5, by adding a subdivision; 270.44; 270.45; 270.46; 270.47; 270.48; 270.50; 270A.03, subdivision 5; 270B.15; 270C.03, subdivision 1; 270C.306; 270C.34, subdivision 1; 270C.446, subdivision 2; 270C.56, subdivision 1; 270C.63, subdivision 9; 272.02, subdivision 64, by adding subdivisions; 272.115, subdivision 1; 273.05, by adding a subdivision; 273.11, subdivision 1a, by adding a subdivision; 273.111, subdivision 3, by adding a subdivision; 273.117; 273.121; 273.123, subdivisions 2, 3, 7; 273.124, subdivisions 1, 13, 14, 21; 273.125, subdivision 8; 273.128, subdivision 1, by adding a subdivision; 273.13, subdivisions 22, 23, 24, 25, 33, by adding a subdivision; 273.1384, subdivision 1; 273.1398, subdivision 4; 273.33, subdivision 2; 273.37, subdivision 2; 273.371, subdivision 1; 274.01, subdivision 1; 274.13, subdivision 1; 275.065, subdivisions 3, 5a, by adding subdivisions; 275.067; 276.04, subdivision 2, by adding a subdivision; 277.01, subdivision 2; 278.05, subdivision 6; 279.01, subdivision 1, by adding a subdivision; 279.37, subdivision 1a; 280.39; 287.22; 287.2205; 289A.02, subdivision 7; 289A.08, subdivisions 3, 11, 13; 289A.09, subdivision 2; 289A.12, subdivisions 4, 14, by adding a subdivision; 289A.18, subdivision 1; 289A.31, subdivision 7; 289A.40, subdivisions 2, 4; 289A.56, by adding a subdivision; 289A.60, subdivisions 8, 12, 25, 27, by adding subdivisions; 290.01, subdivisions 5, 19, as amended, 19b, 19c, 19d, 31, as amended; 290.06, subdivisions 2c, 2d, 33, by adding a subdivision; 290.067, subdivisions 1, 2b; 290.0671, subdivision 7; 290.0677, subdivision 1; 290.091, subdivision 3; 290.0921, subdivision 3; 290.17, subdivisions 2, 4, by adding a subdivision; 290.191, subdivisions 2, 3, 5, 8; 290.21, subdivision 4; 290.92, by adding a subdivision; 290A.03, subdivisions 7, 13, 15, as amended; 290A.04, subdivisions 2a, 2h, 3, 4, by adding a subdivision; 290B.03, subdivisions 1, 2; 290B.04, subdivisions 3, 4; 290B.05, subdivision 1; 290B.07; 290C.02, subdivision 3; 290C.04; 290C.05; 290C.07; 290C.11; 291.005, subdivision 1; 291.03, subdivision 1, by adding subdivisions; 291.215, subdivision 1; 295.52, subdivisions 4, 4a; 295.54, subdivision 2; 296A.18, subdivision 4; 297A.61, subdivisions 3, 4, 7, 10, 12, 24, by adding subdivisions; 297A.63, subdivision 1; 297A.665; 297A.668, by adding a subdivision; 297A.669, subdivisions 3, 13, 14, by adding subdivisions; 297A.67, subdivisions 7, 8, 9; 297A.68, subdivisions 11, 16, 35, by adding a subdivision; 297A.69, subdivisions 2, 3; 297A.70, subdivisions 3, 7, 8, by adding subdivisions; 297A.71, subdivision 23, by adding subdivisions; 297A.72; 297A.75, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, by adding a subdivision; 297A.90, subdivision 2; 297A.99, subdivision 1; 297B.03; 297B.035, subdivision 1; 297E.02, by adding a subdivision; 297F.01, subdivision 19, by adding a subdivision; 297F.05, subdivisions 3, 4, by adding a subdivision; 297F.06, subdivision 4; 297F.21, subdivision 3; 297F.25, by adding a subdivision; 297I.06, subdivisions 1, 2; 297I.15, by adding a subdivision; 297I.20, subdivision 2; 297I.40, subdivision 5; 298.22, by adding a subdivision; 298.2214, subdivision 2; 298.28, subdivision 4, by adding a subdivision; 298.292, subdivision 2; 298.2961, subdivision 4; 298.75, by adding a subdivision; 424A.10, subdivision 3; 435.193; 469.169, by adding a subdivision; 469.1734, subdivision 6; 469.174, subdivisions 10, 10a, 27; 469.175, subdivisions 1, 3; 469.176, subdivisions 1, 2, 4l, 7; 469.1761, subdivision 1; 469.1763, subdivision 2; 469.177, subdivision 1; 469.178, subdivision 7; 469.1791, subdivision 3; 469.1813, subdivision 1a; 469.310, by adding a subdivision; 469.312, by adding subdivisions; 469.314, subdivision 1; 469.3201; 473F.01, subdivision 2; 473F.08, subdivisions 5, 7a; 477A.011, subdivisions 34, 36; 477A.0124, subdivision 5; 477A.013, subdivisions 8, 9, by adding a subdivision; 477A.03; 477A.12, subdivision 1; 477A.14, subdivision 1; Laws 1973, chapter 393, section 1; Laws 1980, chapter 511, section 1, subdivision 2, as amended; Laws 1994, chapter 587, article 9, section 14, subdivisions 1, 2, 3; Laws 1995, chapter 264, article 5, sections 44, subdivision 4, as amended; 45, subdivision 1, as amended; Laws 2005,

First Special Session chapter 3, article 5, section 39; Laws 2006, chapter 236, article 1, section 21; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 84; 270; 270C; 273; 274; 290; 290C; 295; 297A; 383D; 383E; 469; proposing coding for new law as Minnesota Statutes, chapter 290D; repealing Minnesota Statutes 2006, sections 270.073; 270.41, subdivision 4; 270.43; 270.51; 270.52; 270.53; 290.01, subdivision 6b; 290.0921, subdivision 7; 290.191, subdivision 4; 290A.04, subdivisions 2, 2b; 295.60; 297A.61, subdivision 20; 297A.668, subdivision 6; 297A.67, subdivision 22; 383A.80, subdivision 4; 383B.80, subdivision 4; 469.174, subdivision 29; 473F.08, subdivision 3a; Laws 1973, chapter 393, section 2; Laws 1994, chapter 587, article 9, section 8, subdivision 1, as amended.

The Senate has appointed as such committee:

Senators Bakk, Larson, Skoe, Moua, and Marty.

Said House File is herewith returned to the House.

PATRICK E. FLAHAVEN, Secretary of the Senate

### CALENDAR FOR THE DAY

S. F. No. 1483, A bill for an act relating to state government; eliminating the Minnesota Council on Disability sunset; amending Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 256.482, subdivisions 1, 8.

The bill was read for the third time and placed upon its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill and the roll was called. There were 128 yeas and 1 nay as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dill	Hilty	Loeffler	Paulsen	Solberg
Anderson, B.	Dittrich	Holberg	Madore	Paymar	Sviggum
Anderson, S.	Dominguez	Hornstein	Magnus	Pelowski	Swails
Anzelc	Doty	Hortman	Mahoney	Peppin	Thao
Atkins	Eastlund	Hosch	Mariani	Peterson, A.	Thissen
Beard	Eken	Howes	Marquart	Peterson, N.	Tillberry
Benson	Emmer	Huntley	Masin	Peterson, S.	Tingelstad
Berns	Erhardt	Jaros	McFarlane	Poppe	Tschumper
Bigham	Erickson	Johnson	McNamara	Rukavina	Urdahl
Bly	Faust	Juhnke	Moe	Ruth	Wagenius
Brod	Finstad	Kahn	Morgan	Ruud	Walker
Brown	Fritz	Kalin	Morrow	Sailer	Ward
Brynaert	Gardner	Knuth	Mullery	Scalze	Wardlow
Bunn	Garofalo	Koenen	Murphy, E.	Seifert	Welti
Carlson	Greiling	Kranz	Murphy, M.	Sertich	Westrom
Clark	Gunther	Laine	Nelson	Severson	Wollschlager
Cornish	Hackbarth	Lanning	Nornes	Shimanski	Zellers
Davnie	Hansen	Lenczewski	Norton	Simon	Spk. Kelliher
Dean	Hausman	Lesch	Olin	Simpson	
DeLaForest	Haws	Liebling	Olson	Slawik	
Demmer	Heidgerken	Lieder	Otremba	Slocum	
Dettmer	Hilstrom	Lillie	Ozment	Smith	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Buesgens

The bill was passed and its title agreed to.

S. F. No. 1807, A bill for an act relating to Hennepin County; regulating conflicts of interest for certain Hennepin Healthcare System personnel; amending Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 383B.905, by adding a subdivision.

The bill was read for the third time and placed upon its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill and the roll was called. There were 125 yeas and 4 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dettmer	Hilstrom	Lieder	Otremba	Slawik
Anderson, B.	Dill	Hilty	Lillie	Ozment	Slocum
Anderson, S.	Dittrich	Holberg	Loeffler	Paulsen	Smith
Anzelc	Dominguez	Hornstein	Madore	Paymar	Solberg
Atkins	Doty	Hortman	Magnus	Pelowski	Sviggum
Beard	Eastlund	Hosch	Mahoney	Peppin	Swails
Benson	Eken	Howes	Mariani	Peterson, A.	Thao
Berns	Emmer	Huntley	Marquart	Peterson, N.	Thissen
Bigham	Erhardt	Jaros	Masin	Peterson, S.	Tillberry
Bly	Erickson	Johnson	McFarlane	Poppe	Tingelstad
Brod	Faust	Juhnke	McNamara	Rukavina	Tschumper
Brown	Finstad	Kahn	Moe	Ruth	Urdahl
Brynaert	Fritz	Kalin	Morgan	Ruud	Wagenius
Bunn	Gardner	Knuth	Morrow	Sailer	Walker
Carlson	Garofalo	Koenen	Mullery	Scalze	Ward
Clark	Greiling	Kranz	Murphy, E.	Seifert	Wardlow
Cornish	Gunther	Laine	Murphy, M.	Sertich	Welti
Davnie	Hackbarth	Lanning	Nelson	Severson	Wollschlager
Dean	Hansen	Lenczewski	Nornes	Shimanski	Zellers
DeLaForest	Hausman	Lesch	Norton	Simon	Spk. Kelliher
Demmer	Haws	Liebling	Olin	Simpson	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Buesgens            Heidgerken            Olson            Westrom

The bill was passed and its title agreed to.

S. F. No. 1236 was reported to the House.

Morgan moved to amend S. F. No. 1236, the second engrossment, as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert the following language of H. F. No. 1267, the first engrossment:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 43A.191, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **Audits; sanctions and incentives.** (a) The commissioner shall annually audit the record of each agency to determine the rate of compliance with affirmative action requirements.

(b) By March 1 of each odd-numbered year, the commissioner shall submit a report on affirmative action progress of each agency and the state as a whole to the governor and to the Finance Committee of the senate, the Ways and Means Committee of the house of representatives, the Governmental Operations Committees of both houses of the legislature, and the Legislative Coordinating Commission. The report must include noncompetitive appointments made under section 43A.08, subdivision 2a, or 43A.15, subdivisions 3 to 7, 10, and 12, and cover each agency's rate of compliance with affirmative action requirements.

(c) An agency that does not meet its hiring goals must justify its nonaffirmative action hires in competitive and noncompetitive appointments according to criteria issued by the Department of Employee Relations. "Missed opportunity" includes failure to justify a nonaffirmative action hire. An agency must have 25 percent or less missed opportunities in competitive appointments and 25 percent or less missed opportunities in appointments made under sections 43A.08, subdivisions 1, clauses (9), (11), and (16); and 2a; and 43A.15, subdivisions 3 to 7, 10, 12, and 13. In addition, an agency shall:

(1) demonstrate a good faith effort to recruit protected group members by following an active recruitment plan;

(2) implement a coordinated retention plan; and

(3) have an established complaint resolution procedure.

(d) The commissioner shall develop reporting standards and procedures for measuring compliance.

(e) An agency is encouraged to develop other innovative ways to promote awareness, acceptance, and appreciation for diversity and affirmative action. These innovations will be considered when evaluating an agency's compliance with this section.

(f) An agency not in compliance with affirmative action requirements of this section must identify methods and programs to improve performance, to reallocate resources internally in order to increase support for affirmative action programs, and to submit program and resource reallocation proposals to the commissioner for approval. An agency must submit these proposals within 120 days of being notified by the commissioner that it is out of compliance with affirmative action requirements. The commissioner shall monitor quarterly the affirmative action programs of an agency found to be out of compliance.

(g) The commissioner shall establish a program to recognize an agency that has made significant and measurable progress in implementing an affirmative action plan.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 43A.23, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **General.** The commissioner is authorized to request bids proposals or to negotiate and to enter into contracts with parties which in the judgment of the commissioner are best qualified to provide service to the benefit plans. Contracts entered into are not subject to the requirements of sections 16C.16 to 16C.19. The

commissioner may negotiate premium rates and coverage. ~~Contracts to underwrite the benefit plans must be bid or negotiated separately from contracts to service the benefit plans, which may be awarded only on the basis of competitive bids.~~—The commissioner shall consider the cost of the plans, conversion options relating to the contracts, service capabilities, character, financial position, and reputation of the carriers, and any other factors which the commissioner deems appropriate. Each benefit contract must be for a uniform term of at least one year, but may be made automatically renewable from term to term in the absence of notice of termination by either party. A carrier licensed under chapter 62A is exempt from the taxes imposed by chapter 297I on premiums paid to it by the state.

All self-insured hospital and medical service products must comply with coverage mandates, data reporting, and consumer protection requirements applicable to the licensed carrier administering the product, had the product been insured, including chapters 62J, 62M, and 62Q. Any self-insured products that limit coverage to a network of providers or provide different levels of coverage between network and nonnetwork providers shall comply with section 62D.123 and geographic access standards for health maintenance organizations adopted by the commissioner of health in rule under chapter 62D.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 2006, section 43A.49, is amended to read:

**43A.49 VOLUNTARY UNPAID LEAVE OF ABSENCE.**

(a) Appointing authorities in state government may allow each employee to take unpaid leaves of absence for up to 1,040 hours between June 1, ~~2003~~ 2007, and June 30, ~~2005~~ 2009. The 1,040 hour limit replaces, and is not in addition to, limits set in prior laws. Each appointing authority approving such a leave shall allow the employee to continue accruing vacation and sick leave, be eligible for paid holidays and insurance benefits, accrue seniority, and accrue service credit and credited salary in the state retirement plans as if the employee had actually been employed during the time of leave. An employee covered by the unclassified plan may voluntarily make the employee contributions to the unclassified plan during the leave of absence. If the employee makes these contributions, the appointing authority must make the employer contribution. If the leave of absence is for one full pay period or longer, any holiday pay shall be included in the first payroll warrant after return from the leave of absence. The appointing authority shall attempt to grant requests for the unpaid leaves of absence consistent with the need to continue efficient operation of the agency. However, each appointing authority shall retain discretion to grant or refuse to grant requests for leaves of absence and to schedule and cancel leaves, subject to the applicable provisions of collective bargaining agreements and compensation plans.

(b) To receive eligible service credit and credited salary in a defined benefit plan, the member shall pay an amount equal to the applicable employee contribution rates. If an employee pays the employee contribution for the period of the leave under this section, the appointing authority must pay the employer contribution. The appointing authority may, at its discretion, pay the employee contributions. Contributions must be made in a time and manner prescribed by the executive director of the Minnesota State Retirement Association.

Sec. 4. **EFFECTIVE DATE.**

Section 3 is effective June 1, 2007."

Delete the title and insert:

"A bill for an act relating to state employees; making technical and housekeeping changes; amending Minnesota Statutes 2006, sections 43A.191, subdivision 3; 43A.23, subdivision 1; 43A.49."

The motion prevailed and the amendment was adopted.



S. F. No. 1236, A bill for an act relating to state employees; making technical and housekeeping changes; amending Minnesota Statutes 2006, sections 43A.191, subdivision 3; 43A.23, subdivision 1.

The bill was read for the third time, as amended, and placed upon its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill and the roll was called. There were 94 yeas and 35 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dittrich	Hosch	Loeffler	Otremba	Slocum
Anderson, S.	Dominguez	Huntley	Madore	Ozment	Solberg
Anzelc	Doty	Jaros	Mahoney	Paulsen	Swails
Atkins	Eken	Johnson	Mariani	Paymar	Thao
Benson	Erhardt	Juhnke	Marquart	Pelowski	Thissen
Bigham	Faust	Kahn	Masin	Peterson, A.	Tillberry
Bly	Fritz	Kalin	McNamara	Peterson, N.	Tingelstad
Brod	Gardner	Knuth	Moe	Peterson, S.	Tschumper
Brown	Greiling	Koenen	Morgan	Poppe	Wagenius
Brynaert	Hansen	Kranz	Morrow	Rukavina	Walker
Bunn	Hausman	Laine	Mullery	Ruud	Ward
Carlson	Haws	Lenczewski	Murphy, E.	Sailer	Wolti
Clark	Hilstrom	Lesch	Murphy, M.	Scalze	Wollschlager
Cornish	Hilty	Liebling	Nelson	Sertich	Spk. Kelliher
Davnie	Hornstein	Lieder	Norton	Simon	
Dill	Hortman	Lillie	Olin	Slawik	

Those who voted in the negative were:

Anderson, B.	Demmer	Garofalo	Lanning	Ruth	Sviggum
Beard	Dettmer	Gunther	Magnus	Seifert	Urdahl
Berns	Eastlund	Hackbarth	McFarlane	Severson	Wardlow
Buesgens	Emmer	Heidgerken	Nornes	Shimanski	Westrom
Dean	Erickson	Holberg	Olson	Simpson	Zellers
DeLaForest	Finstad	Howes	Peppin	Smith	

The bill was passed, as amended, and its title agreed to.

Sertich moved that the remaining bills on the Calendar for the Day be continued. The motion prevailed.

## MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS

Lesh moved that the name of Davnie be added as an author on H. F. No. 49. The motion prevailed.

Hansen moved that the name of McNamara be added as an author on H. F. No. 1016. The motion prevailed.

Davnie moved that the name of Hornstein be added as an author on H. F. No. 1758. The motion prevailed.

Marquart moved that the name of Wollschlager be added as an author on H. F. No. 1769. The motion prevailed.

Bly moved that the name of Davnie be added as an author on H. F. No. 1799. The motion prevailed.

Tschumper moved that the name of Murphy, E., be added as an author on H. F. No. 1986. The motion prevailed.

Simpson moved that his name be stricken as an author on H. F. No. 2362. The motion prevailed.

Emmer moved that the House instruct the House Committee on Commerce and Labor to conduct a hearing and report back to this body within the next seven days on allegations that Minnesota Attorney General Lori Swanson may be punishing lawyers and staff of the Office of the Attorney General in retaliation for their efforts to organize with the American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees (or "AFSCME").

Sertich moved that the Emmer motion be referred to the Committee on Rules and Legislative Administration.

A roll call was requested and properly seconded.

The question was taken on the Sertich motion and the roll was called. There were 129 yeas and 0 nays as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Abeler	Dettmer	Hilstrom	Lillie	Ozment	Smith
Anderson, B.	Dill	Hilty	Loeffler	Paulsen	Solberg
Anderson, S.	Dittrich	Holberg	Madore	Paymar	Sviggum
Anzelc	Dominguez	Hornstein	Magnus	Pelowski	Swails
Atkins	Doty	Hortman	Mahoney	Peppin	Thao
Beard	Eastlund	Hosch	Mariani	Peterson, A.	Thissen
Benson	Eken	Howes	Marquart	Peterson, N.	Tillberry
Berns	Emmer	Huntley	Masin	Peterson, S.	Tingelstad
Bigham	Erhardt	Jaros	McFarlane	Poppe	Tschumper
Bly	Erickson	Johnson	McNamara	Rukavina	Urdahl
Brod	Faust	Juhnke	Moe	Ruth	Wagenius
Brown	Finstad	Kahn	Morgan	Ruud	Walker
Brynaert	Fritz	Kalin	Morrow	Sailer	Ward
Buesgens	Gardner	Knuth	Mullery	Scalze	Wardlow
Bunn	Garofalo	Koenen	Murphy, E.	Seifert	Welti
Carlson	Greiling	Kranz	Murphy, M.	Sertich	Westrom
Clark	Gunther	Laine	Nelson	Severson	Wollschlager
Cornish	Hackbarth	Lanning	Nornes	Shimanski	Zellers
Davnie	Hansen	Lenczewski	Norton	Simon	Spk. Kelliher
Dean	Hausman	Lesch	Olin	Simpson	
DeLaForest	Haws	Liebling	Olson	Slawik	
Demmer	Heidgerken	Lieder	Otremba	Slocum	

The motion prevailed and the Emmer motion was referred to the Committee on Rules and Legislative Administration.

ADJOURNMENT

Sertich moved that when the House adjourns today it adjourn until 12:30 p.m., Monday, April 30, 2007. The motion prevailed.

Sertich moved that the House adjourn. The motion prevailed, and the Speaker declared the House stands adjourned until 12:30 p.m., Monday, April 30, 2007.

ALBIN A. MATHIOWETZ, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives

